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. IN TEE R/G1 COVET OF  JUSTICE
. 1 ' • KING' BEKCH D/VISIar-

Royal Courts of Juotien
Tuesdov,'12th October, 1943 

BEPOR

MR. JUSTICE CROOM-JOHMON
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BEM t: ANGTWR

(Transcript of the Shorthen1 Notes of The hssociotion of
Official Shorthandwriters Ltd., Room 192, Royal Courts of
Justice, ond 2 New Square, Lincoln's Inn, London, W.C.2.)

MR.0,0.81ADE, K.C. (instructed by Messrs.Rallantyno Clifford A
Co.) oppeorei on behalf of the .Plaintiff.

SERJRANT SULLIVAN, R.C. and MR VALERPINE HOLMES (instructed by
Mesers.Rarbert Oppenheimer Nathan & vandyk) appeared on
behalf of the Defendants.

PIRST	 Di Y

MB SLAD38 My Lord, in this ease 1 appear on behalf of the Plain-
tiff, and my learned frienAs Snrjeant Sullivan are Mr.
Valentine Holman represent the Defendants. The action is an
action for libel, and the libel in contained in o foreign
newupoper, the "Cechoslovak", which I BM ins t ructed is the
mouthpiece of the Czechoalovak Provisional Government in
this country, It is read by some 11,000 Czechoslovak
refugmea, or ther eabouts, who are at prevent in this country.
The Plaintiff to a General in t he Czechoalovak army. Be hoe
at the moment been removed from the active poet, but in in
receipt of a aubsistence allowance from the Czechoslovak •
Government in this country. HA in the senior Army Officer
in the Czaohoslovak Arm, at present outeile tte country of
Oaeoho Slovakia, Your Lordship will see from parepeph 1
of the Statement of Claim that on or about the 28th August
2930, he woe appoin*ed Comander in Chief. These facts are
net out in paragraph 1 of the Statement of Claim, which is
net admitted, but which I shall 'rove, ne wan appointed
°amender in Chief of a Cznahoolovaktan Legion in Poland
end thereupon prooeedol to organise a Imgion for t he purpose
Of esstang the Czechoslovak Liberation Movement until ha
Was Obliged to leave Poland on account of the German occupa-
tion of that Gauntry. May I give your Lordship throe dates
which may non tot, Piretly, on the 5th October 1938, which
was just after Munich, Dr. Benne :insigne . ' his Presidency
of the Oseohoolovak Republic and left Czech° Slovakia, and, no
for or I know, hoo never returned to it. On the 15th Maroh
1939, the German Army marched into Czeoho Slovakia, On thp
21st July, 1040, pr, Rom net up a Provisional Government
in London which has been recognised by the Brit ish GoTern.-
MOM. Dr, Denns,.1 think, in foot styles himself to this
day pm the President of the c000hoolovak Republic. Bo each
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for the Plointiff.

. The De fendant's are two.	 Firet],:is there is Mr. Bohn!
Banes, who is a nephew of Dr. Eduard Benet,. 	 He was, I am
instructed formerly private secretary to his uncle. At all
material times now, at any rate until quite rec ently, he was
Editor in chief of the "Cachoslovak". newspaper. The co-
Defendant, Unwin Brothers Limitel, are the print ,;!..s of that
newspaper.

General Prohals is an Officer who ban had an extremely
distinguished Army career with plenty of active fifOnting,
and wh e n he goes into the witness. box I shall ta1 4 him
Vhortly through the various promotions thot he hen undertoken
until he has reachnl his presen t rank. Your Lordship will
notice that the translation of the Statement or Claim is npt
admitted. I think, however, not that i t matters, the
translation has been agreed with the exception of one very
short passage of a few words. Your Lordship rely not be
surprised to hear that the passage which hits not been agreed
is the most important passage of the whole lot, / am, there-
tore, calling a Professor with an unimpeachbble record of
knowledge of Ianguogos, and I propose to put him in the
witness box first, becouse when I come to rood it I attach
particular importance to it. If your Lordship will look at

• page 2 Of the print in Czech, your Lordship will notioe the
•words Hitahankovstine, which I ask your Lordship to notice is
• spelt with a capitol "TO, and apPlt with a small ape

". 5PrObal0Votine. Your Lordship will hear that that is
deliberate ploy upon the name -- it is actually his name

• .;Of the Plaintiff and that there is o significance in using
•a small "p" for his name and a capital IC" for the name
lath which.his name Is ossoolated. Your lordship will hear

,. furthermore that the surname "Prohalo" in formed free the
.0seels verb Hprohati" and that that verb means "to run away",

: which applied to a soldier has a peculiar significance.
'Your Lordship will 'hear that the suffix flotilla" which appears
in both the names "Robankov" and "Prahalo" is easentiellr of
• derogatory character. An these ore foreign wards, I
shall be able . to Gall export evidence to tell your Lordship

• what a demob would understand words in this form to moan. •

now propos,. to read the English transla t ion which is
:lot Out in the !HotelsAnt of Claim, The whole of the article
is haadedt "Into the lent Year". Although I am v.oing to road
the first long Paragraph, it hoe been put in merel y for the
•context, and I only attach any importance to a very few words
of its "We are used to pay a greatm. attention to the so.
Oalled internal matters of our Liberation Movement abroad
than to our position in foreign policy or to the future
prepetive, owing to the fact that Ath are accustomed to
leave the letter to the expert handn or our loaders. The
Army, which went through several serious crises, caused by
the hotorogenous struc ture of the emigration, was criticised
by many. There were many who und crstond the Army hotter
than those to wham its building up and leadarship.was entrust
ed and again finally very few remarke.1 that the Army has
olfeedy overcome all its main crises and in growing into a
mroonotetive unit in spite of all the fundnmental and often
•ortoue diffloultion, All critics agree that the Osoobosloyek
pilots rank by their deeds on the fore in the picture of
results of our struggle, At variance to this the political
orgonismtion of our second liberation movement Is ceaselessly
eubjeoted to a - more or less . competent surgery performed
by tbos p .who are personally convinced that they could do it
better then the others, and that they are batter suited to
lend to our Policy a more opportunis t ic idocacive. I puce
no importance on that, it is merely th e context, Now these
ore the words: ',There Were several attempts to create a schism
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and to set up an cp*osttion within our liberation movement.
In two cases, in ?oiand and in France, all the complicatiens
were solved for us by the nvonts thewelves, es the ?resident
foresaw from the very begih qng, with certainty end Patience".
i pause hore to say that I am here conc ernel with ?oland.
In the next action which your Lordship will try, the
Plaintiff wets for	 Years tho Czechoslovak Winister in
?aria and he complains of the Pr e nch portion of fho article.
"The Kahanek end Prchala noisancer"- I pbuso there, because
I asked my client who Yahonek wa g .	 1,11 I know about him is
that he was a l ournalist who ! think wroto a bank culled
"Dr Bones versus Mr.ileck". 	 Mr. 1, enk, our Lordship will .
remeber, was the Foreign Vinister in :oland. 	 This article
is written by a nephew of Dr. Bones and no doobt from his
point of view anyone who loos not bow the knee in its
entirety to Dr. Bono is a nuisance. "The lahanek and
Prchala nuisanow, died.off in ?oland with the Beck regime
before they could grow into a real schism. In Xria, ell
our difficulties • far more serious than the pitiful
attempts to create a "separate liberation movement" in
Poland -- abused by the French politicians who share the
responsibility for Yunioh -- were disposed of for us by Adolf
.Hitler in his crushing France. In arest Britain a smell
...group of upsatIsfied individuals attempted to impose them-
selves, trying to exploit the more or leaf justified
grievances to get hold of the lead Irship in the tins when -•
according to their opinion - the democratic world drifted
definitely to the extreme l eft. However, this group didn't
grow Into on opeosition eld behaves reasonably mad dubmits
Itself to the leadership of our lib era t ion movement,- The .
Communists who were temporarily in opoos/tion, are.to-loy
the noisiest champions of the national unity. An ineffi.
cient attempt to create a sort of a 'Slovak separatism ? 	 N

in the second liberation movem ent, badly midi:tarried-already
in Prance and in Groat Britain nothing similar Gould have
bed any chance, It is characteristic that ill thee* shadows,
whioh fell on the unity of our second liberation Movement
didn't leave any lasting traces and ware claw of an	 .
absolutely different substance, emanating from different

• groups and tendencies", Then / emphasise the next 'manages
Mil proves that they were too obviously grounded In
personal or party ambition, or that their objective cause
was swept away by timely reforms in our orgardeetion. The
whole of our movement, although it bad encountered mmgr

• difficulties ind made many mistake, CO 0 unit presented
.Ateelf in c very healthy light, because it overcome all its
internal arises, without any dangerous disturbances or 	 .
pOlitiool divogetiorm being noticed in the substance of our
movement from the outside world, It can be trusted that
our people at home will be more grateful to .us for this
asset of relative unity than for anything else we shall
•uoceod elsewhere to do for them'', Of course, the. 	 •

the words Sp

p

 can be trusted that our people at hone'''. Now	 • I

Plaintiff hoe to return home immediately after this wee
4, over and your Lordship will notice the significance of

the &unwept *That the alaintiff had endeavoured to disrupt
the united Dad harmonious operation of the Oleohoslovek
Liberation. Movement, that he had b40Wiallilty of subversive
Sotivities for personal or party riosons, and that he' had
been disloyal to his oeuntre. •

• •
• In the Defence, paragraph-1 is not edmittoi, Paragraph
• 8 Is admitted °sent that no admiesion is made as to the

extent of the ciroulation of the 0 eohoalovolcv , save that
it is not admitted that the words. complained of Wars printed
or *Welled or have any defamatory meaning, end then there
lathe rolled up plea,
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Upon reading that articl e , General Prchala wrote letter.
No. 51 dated the 17th Januar!, 1942: "In your indepenlent

. weekly 'Ceohoslo yak t year 4, Mo.1, from the 2 ,rd January,
2942, I yes personally attacked. It happened in the lead-
ing article which ha the healing "Tenax . 'Into Th e Lent
Year', On the first page in the first paragraph, the slx-
teenth line below by the expression "prchalovstina'. 	 This

.general expression is in the same paragraph connected with
the sent enoes: me had various attempts for a break ond for
the formation of an opposition inside our moven emt. In two

• cases in Poland nnd in France all complicutions were settlel
' for us by the events' un .1 form t he basis for the sentence

• 'kahrinkOestina a prenhalo ystina t (kahankoyiam anl prechalov..
ism) ended in koland with the regime of Peck earlier, before

)) they could grow into a real break'. The logical con-
1 elusion of thAse sontoncee is the charact eristic in the

//, sixth line of the second paragre ph of the same article
contained in tie, aentence 'All these ahadows which fell an
the unity of the second liberation movement' And finished
on the tenth line of the eecond paragraph with the words

.• /were ton apparently based on prruonal or purely party
ambitions', By all these expressions words erd cbaracteri-

.	 sties, I feel to be deeply personelly infringed andoffended.
As all or these personal Wences are y•ithout the least
fOundetion. I an asking 'Tau to publish in the next number
of . the independent weekly Cechoslovak in the same manner
1%4 etssobod declaration. Shouli t his declaration not be

• printed in the next number of the inlepenlent weekly
Geohoslovak - latest to the :51st Jarmary 1942 - I shall be •::•	 -	 towed t o defend my honour before t he appropriate Courts in
the United Kingdom. Yours faithfully Army General Lev

, PrObsle". Thorp Was anclesef with '.bat page 52; "In No.1,
iliyasr 4, of the independent weekly ,CsecboySlovek , we

•ommittod an offence against the Arm General Ley ?rebels.
It happenedin the leading articl e which hal the heading7 flemwev-e 'into the last Year'. On the first page in the
first paragraph, sixteenth line below were the words
qr0101ovittna l , This general expression 18 in the tune

V, • • paiessroph connected with the sentences 'we had various
•attempts for s break and the formation of en Opposition
- inside our movement, In the cases in Poland and in Prance,
. all these complications were settled for us by the avant.'

and forms the basis of the sentence Mabankovstina and
.prohaloystina ended in Poland with the Beck regime before

',•	 : they Gould grow into a real break'. The lo:iaal conclusion
he Sentences is that the obarsoterietios on the sixth

	

' 4ims, second paragraph of this article contained in the 	 A
• Oe484080 'All these shadows which 011 on the unity of the

• second Maranon Movement' and 0001 on the tenth line of
the . sesond Arogroph by the words 'were too apparenlaw based
on personal or purely party ambitions'. The Army Oeniaisi at

:• the llisotosioisk Army, Lay Prachola, Os.V,X., 8,8.0,, feels
• .by these words, expressions and oharastp iatics deeply •

'Infringed snd offended boons@ they heavily touch his
witio01 boon', his military honour aril his honour as 0

- . 0SoIsong we regret that we used in the mentionei article
such impressions, words end characteristics and are with.

„drawing *ben to the full extant, We ask Arskv General
. Probsis in this goy for accepting apologies and WO OPP

Wing him herewith full satisfaction and are thanking bin
• that be did not 	 this article take fUrther steps againgt 	 .

. 110. The reply was an page 83: "Door General, Tovour 

	

.1ottor of the 17th January of this year referring to the 	 )1
ortiole otenms into the last year" the weekly Opachoeleivak
4.4 .reor 4 of the 8nd January of this year we would Me

	

:	 to inform you that even after careful consid.,ration la do
net lee in the sentences you are complaining of an ta4tnek
on your person or Of personal offences spinet ye4. The
writer of the article had not at all the intentign to touch

;



you Personally, The krtiol e is only a fair comment in the
S ense of the English legal 'provisions on a politleal attitude.
Should . you, however, estm emel lir.Generel, persist in your
opinion, our paper is prnerei to supplenent the article by
'Tenax l as stated uhoved.

MR JUSTICE CROON-JOHNSOlis What loss that mean? Does that
an that they are willing to oontinue the F.rt iole hv putting

in the first perograph of that letter?
MR SLADE, Yea, my Lorl, I think hv SW' int; it ta.r: not intenied

to be personal. That is what I understan. 4 i t to mean.
Then this • irit was issued, I lo not quite know what they
mean by savinq it rthr not inteniad to be °Arsenal, seeing
that whatever translation one gives to tW % , ord "prchalov.
elm", it is quite clear they are mr.Ping u-' of the

• Plaintiff's name which is extremely well known, I cm not
going t o deal rith the plea o" fair commen t it all. The onus
lies upon the Oefenlunts to substantiate it 1.1y1 I shall deal
with i t if neceseurv in re-examination, If Om, attempt is .
mode to set up e oleo of lustifica t ien it will, of course,

.,heve to go und be confined t o t he facts rteted in the libel
.,	 • and the facts stated in this libel refer, as I unierstand

) . thisi em 9 an tt ltern
the tine

 some fonhrmsi.o un.f atpeleasnhourt ntsIio t iki:usI . it, to come schism which is alleged to hove be en created by

,If	
andecci%:Ved

the border into Poland after his country WO been invaded,,.//
h	 ,,,z' by the Huns for the purpose of ussie t ing the • ?oles whom be

1	 anticipate, and rightly ontiolpatei, would he the next ones
to be attacked in their impending fight against Germeny.
That is what he did, There are only two other documents I
propose to trouble your Lordship with before I oa'l my
evidence, One is an Order of the eresidant or the Polish
Republic, and the other is the declaration of Field Marshal
E luard Sraygly-Ryds of the Polish Army, I rey tell your
Lordship that my client will t all you that i101and wee still
sanguine thut Germany would not at tack her long after the
Plaintiff thought that they would behave to Poland preolsely
as they had behaved to Oseoho•Sloyakia, While they were in
that atate, Poland was most anxious to avcrid doing anything
which could possibly have been said to r,ive any sort of
exouse to Germany which, of course, wt kture now Germany	 •.
would never worry about for thvadinn someone else , ' country,
Amongst other things they wore asked to do e rol they sub-
mitted to it because they thouaht it would pacify Germany

• was that when Gernmr.v hod annexed OxechoeSlovekla the Germans
actually had the effrontery to d Tarsi that ttte Poles should
alas 0 t he 0 secho-Sloya k la n Legation in Warsaw, because the
Germans said the Oxechoefilovekten State had oeased to exist
as it had been sterged in the Reich, Th e ?aloe submitted

li	 torather than run the risk of girinl th4 s lightests t excuse
the •eemanito attack, General ?rebels was on extremely
patriotic, Czech who all Blom; sow this comin: ,, oil in
between the invasion of his own country in 141:1oh, 103P, and

, the invasion Of :oland on the 1st Sept ember, 1P39„ he tnek•
. atePa, so far or he woe able, t o augmtnt the resistance

• which Poland might he able to coke to the Germans by getting •
this Oseohoslovak Legion in 2olonl to flOt ',boulder to,..
shoulder with the Polish Arm y, As we know, what happened

c was Poland were no retch for the Germans and the Germano
were in Warsaw before amthind could be lone. Of the two
documents I have just put before your Lordship, there Is One
dated the 3rd September, 1959, signed General Ofrioar

..,.. Commending. *Sword Sulglperls, lolloh Marshal, "Proclaim.
,..- tion of the Polish Clommenier ■lh-Ohlor to the Czech awl

• Slovak Soldiers. Czech soldier, Slovak collier. The age-
old e nemy of the Slavonia nations has lounehel a barberous

:. attack on our moat sacred rights, on our ?rendes and
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independence, All agre ements end ull peaceful pledgee have
been violated and trampled. underfoot The enemy fraudulently
occupied the Czech lands and Slovakta against the will of the
nations and at the some time hoe brutelly attacked the
Polish nation whioh will fi.tt with weapon in hand until its
last breath 'for our freedom and %mura l , -Way the glorloym
tradition of Grunwald, wh are in t he bloody etruggly egainat
the Teutons all the Slavonic nations acted in solidarity
and when the blood of your fiAht ing ancestors war n elf.
suorifloingly shed, revive your heer fe today with hops and
fort ify your a rm", and then the last pare gra ph: "In Poland
Czech and Slovak legions are now being formed 'cholla Command-
in-Chief is be ing taken over by Army General La y ?rohala, a
soldier avparienoed in battle. Per military reasons these
Legions will for the now* form a a ingle militarY formation
which will fight hand in /awl with the Polish Arm" for your
and our freedom until vietoryll,

MR JUSTIC v. CROOM-JC4iNSoN1 I se a that le rddreseel to the
Oseohoelovak soldier.

MR SIAM Yes, my Lord. Then on the other ?3age in the
.• 'Decree of the treatelant of the Polish Remiblio of ttle rd	 t.

September, 1939, aoneerninl the formation of th e Czech and
Slovak Legions. - I will not troubla your Lertiship with
that, It is merely the Polish authorisation for OceohOY
slovsk soldiers to be reified within the Polish territory,
just like in this country w q passed the Allied Pierces Act
to allow Queen Wilhelmina, and no on, to raise Netherland

, forces.

• That In all I propose to tall your lordship at the moment.
There is other correspondence, there Is oorrespondanoe not!.
tying the General that he has be an awarded th . .4olish War
Gross signed by General Sikorski. With your lordship's
permission I propose to cell first of all a Professor to
translate the Oseoh because I think it will assist your
Lordship in interpreting the Plaintiff's evidqnce.

wisp_bwws
Q not is your nationality? A. I em a Czechoslovakian... aka,.

Q you live, do you mot, at Woods Cottage, Pound Bill, Crawley?
A. Yes, I do.

Q Are you the Chaplain of the Votre "knee Convent at s'oUnd Hill?
A, Yes, an evenuatel Convent from London.

• Are T oo e Professor end 8 former Nan of the rniyersity of
Charles IV at Prague? 	 A. Yes,

Q Are yOu a Doctor of Divinity? A, Yes,

Q A Doctor of Literature? A, Yes,

Q And a Member of the Oseah Academy? A, Yes,

Q I believe you are an Associate Member of various other
Academies, .8 and a Member of the Slavonia Institut e? 4, Yes,

4 To oomplote your record, I believe you are at present
orisAged in r00 0aron into Bizantina and Slavonic history?
11, Tea,

• You mere quite unconnected with the Plaint 1?? in Osecho-
Slevliklof A. I did not know him in Oxocho.Slovakis.

/1	 0
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Profesior P . DvOrnikt Examined..•

1.•

knew him only by fame.

04 What was his reputation? A.His reputation was quite
high as a good patriot, anti especially as a very gonl soldier
one of the best Czech strategists WA tuld.

Did you see the ar t icle in the journal "lechoelovak" when it
was published ? A. I 114.

Q Did you read it of your own acnord or because 7nu were actoi,
to do-so by cnyone in this cuss 4 A. I road it because
almost every Czechoslovakian in London, even though he daps

. not like the general trond If the paper, reeds this paper •
because it is the only paper which gives us some news about
our country.

?a1'bor:4 you would not mind taking the original of thm neis.
paper in Czech. Would you mind looking at the words	 .
"Kehankovetins and prohalovstina"? A. IS It in the last.
paragraph on the first line ?

Q yes, Do you notice that 4Eobankovstina" is spelt with
a capital "rn I A. Yes, it is.

q Do you notice that eprchaloystina" is spelt with a small
ep" I A. Yes, unfortunately.

Q Would you mind telling his Lorlship what is your derivation
of the nom* "Prohala" 1 A. The name "?rohola" is derive .1
from the Czech verb 4prohatt 4 which moans in English to run
or to run away.

Q .Do you know who Fahanek was I	 at./ did not know him per-
sonally but I heard of him in Prague. ee was a lournalist
on an agrarian papers a very big tePee.

0411 Ha was a journalist employe .) by BOW big agrarian Morse
A, Yes,

01 Would you mind telling my Lord what the words *Kabankovitirme
ead"probslovstina" would convey to a Oseob in the content
in which they appear in that article V A. "Kahaneke and
errobalm e ere, of course, two separate names of two parsons
In Czech we eon add the awffix Retina e to any summit or to
any Other different am, but especially to a surname. 'hen
we add it to a surname the word ' lilting " as a suffix
ganoorally has a very derogatory meaning. 	 As an example,
there Is another direrente. It we say 1/ 3rchalisfta 5 in
Oseob it MOUS something like a stragetio dootrina-or
stragetlo science,

MASI? SUIZZVAW y The learned gentleman has run oompletalw
beyond my aomprehonsion as he is going too feat,

(The J-Nehon4eriter Peed

MR JUSTICE' OR0011-JORMSofft That is the some thing. It does
not necessarily mean it is derogatory In our time that you
say a oslabrated man was torwin.amd he had a colobratel
theory, You do not make it derogatory of Mr. Darwin to gay
be had a Darwinian theory,

SRRJRAIT SCLLIVANI Our translation is that St moons "ille
as we spook or Darwinism.

MR JUST/OR CROOM•JORDSONt (To the witness). Yon SST that

•■■
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Professor P. Dvornik: Examined..

:
.	 4

this word "stine" in your language would have that signifi-
cation, something derogstoryl A. Yes. For example, if
we speak about Hitlorrism, it moans the doctrine of Nazi-ism.
I do not like it perhaps, but I can discuss it es doctrine..
If we say Ritlerstina, it means ell the means which Hitler-.
has displayed to 00UP to power or other similar things to
that.

-YR SLOE: Quite apart from the adlition of the suffix "etina"
with which you have lust dealt, you have told my Lord that

•	 the surname "Prohola" is derived frees the Isech verb
"prehati", which means to run or run ewer A. YOS.

Q You else have told me that vou notice tha capital 'IT" for
"rehonek" and the smell "p" for "prohals". Would that con-
vey anything to your mind wh en used of any Armv Cenerel
A. Yes,	 Unfortunately the name of Yr. ?rebels, because it
is derived from the verb "prehati" when the suffix "stint"
is added to it, con evoke to e ',Bach mind a man, for example,
who is just running from his duty or from his resuonsibility
because ot this unfortunate derivation of the rom p, *epee-
Lally when it is 	 with G derogatory

it.
meaning. It co, con-

yoy

MR JUSTICE CROUM4WINSON; That is not quite the question you
were asked. The question you were asked is thiss Is there
any ditto:4mse in this article because . the word "prchalov-
stino" is spelt with o small "p" as compered with tavt word
it it were spelt with a eapitall"P"	 A, Yes, it 	 the
impression that the name "prchalovstins" ie used with more 	 N.
disrespootlm contempt immune it is not with a capital.

Q. Do you :Oen it is a mark Of contempt or disrespect of this
gentleman who has this name P.	 A. Y08.

SERJRAIT SULLSANs My friend's question was, was it because
of the capital "e" for the general and smell lo p" for the
other. The capitol "K" begins 8 sentence,

MR SLADE, 'Junin*s are always spelt with a capi tal whether
they coarsens. a sentence or not. 	 •

MR mum CROOV.Jueeeulti There is no ful stop in the
original after the word which immellately Aracelowi it. .%

, MR SW?* None at all.

THE WITMESD: May I just point out to he smrpeot because / sop
new it is the beginning of a new phrase, when it is at the
beginning of a new phrase than it is writtsn with a capital.
But the other word is not at the beginning of the phrase anti,
therefore, it eon be a smell letter, It can apnea,' this
special mooning.

4 The dWerenee in the letters it 	 a, yes,

Q Leslie for one moment the difference in. the lettere, Will -
you still answer my Question which I also put, the word
wprobelovatina" being used in reference to On Army General,
Do you still say whet you have just said about that?
A. Yea. Unfortunately the name to very unfortunate. It
can just convoy this when used with the surix "'tine".
It certainly makes the derogetory sense more *vide*• than
any other nano,	 •

4 Would it be e correct interpretation of whit you were
saying to say that used in ref arenee to an Amy General it
emphasises 	

19
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0

SERJEANT SULLIVAN: . Ha does not say that. RA saya in reference
to this Army leneral owing to tto misfortune ofAis birth
with a name like that.	 4 •

. MR JUSTICE CRO0M-JORNSOP: I suppos e it is like using the
name Smith in any 'English or t inlo with c small "s" and . with .
a suffix.

0

,
MR SIADE: If one had an Army tlenoral whose namo was Cowbrd

and another whose name vas Smith and 70U put Smithism
commencing with a capital "5", and Cowardism with c smalleon

..WR JUSTICE CROON ...100SO. Well, that would be a question,
would it not?

MR SIADE. That is whet I suggest is the position here.

MR JUSTICE CROON-JOHNSON; That is the distinction, is it not?

MR SIAM I notice the witness's answer ard I sa y nothing
more for the moment. It is not rtat this witness says
but what reasonable persons think. B efore I put this ques-
tion to the witness, I want to give Serpent Sullivant an
opportunity of objecting to it, Therefore I will put tle •
question before I put it to the witness, Bearing in mini
that your Lordship has heard that the words "rahunkovstinar
and Rproholovstina" are what I may cell mach-up words, I
proms.' to ask this vitnass what it would convey to him
about the Plaintiff, the article in the Czech language as a
whole,

WI JUSTICE OR0011 .40UMON. .1 do not know about that. That
sounds to me like puttinq one long l oading question to him.
If you can'put Articular passage in the article, well und
good, because you yournolf told me that 7ou do not oomploin
of all the article. I think the old fashion is nuoh better
in a libel action, that you put out thewords end not the
words in which the newspeper haPpansto have enshrined them
Wore it is quite plain there are only two or three pieces
of this orticlo /doh are the words comp's/m . 1 of. I think
in order to admit that question I should have to get von to
direct the vitnoas ts mini one by one to thos e ports of the
article which really constitute whet I have oellei in the
old fashioned. way "the words".

MR SIAM I respootfalls, ogroe. (To the witness); Would you
be good enough to take the poor in your hand spin, Would,
you rend through to yourself the pessage t commencing "There
were several attempts to create a schism" just before
Nth. KoboukovotIno w . Would you road from there lown'to the()
equivalent in Osooh of the words "separate libo..ation
movement in Poland"? A. Yes,

4 Would you mind than looking lower damn until you acme to
the words "it is charecteris tio that on these shadows"
down to the words "rofornm in our orgonisotion". Then
perhaps you would rood the lpst four lines "It minty,
trusted that our people at home, and so on. Would %mu
idna telling we thins what would those ports of that article
convey to a csooh about Aram general ?rebels,

IMAJEANT MILLIVAN: That is diumnsing with your Lordship's 	 .
% funotion, We are °peed on the translation exoept as to

the. significance of two words, ThA translation accordingly
/is the translation that Is agreed upon when "on have solved

-
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.those two wOrds and writ t en in your solution of that. Your
Lordship is the judge.

.MR JUSTICE CROCM-JOHNSuN: Yes, hut thot does not shut out
outside evidence as to what it would convey to the mind of

reasonably minded man. If it had been on English article
• such evidence would be admissible.
. SERJEANT SULLIVAN; If your Lordship thinks it '7111 be of any

.''asaistance to you, by all means.-
MR JUSTICE CROCH-JOHNSON: I do not think I can shut i t out,
. Gen I?

• •SERJEkNT SULLIVAN: Very well, mv Lord.

• MR SLADE; Perhaps I mi4ht repent mv question. Wh‘t would'thos.
.'.passages which you have just read, coupled with the words

ending in "stina" conve y to a Czenh about genera/ Probals?
A. Any Czech in London who reads this article has to make
these conclusions, thpt General ?robala has done some-
thing - "pichalovstima" is not quite correct - that he has

.	 '! attempted to create a schism which could have been very pre-
- Judicial t o our oommon liberation movement. There are also
• some other attempts whichire spoken 1,a_out here, ard it is

suggested that thos e a ttempts have been nada with party
ambitions or personal inte ntions, Personal and party
ashitions.

MR JUSTICE CROOR-JORASON: The difficulty I feel about it is
that the witness is purporting to be answering for the Czech
people generally who react this article. Perhaps you will
,ek him about what ha thinks himself,` .

- .,.. • ,ohoas-stitar3 by SNIVEANT SULLIVAN

Where were you at the time of Munich? 	 A, Iri Engla nd.. -

• When Old you leave your own country? A. I loft my own
country in October, 1938,

4 That was after Munich. Did you take en interest in the
politica Of your own country while you were there? . Yee,

• Indirectly,

Q Did you take any part in the politiota life of your country?
A. Nor no direct part kh the' pnlitiobl life of my country,

Q But you took an interest in lolitical affairs and studied
them and have lone so since, have yoU not? x, Yes, I have
done whet I could.

4 We may as well face the facts. What cart of Csoohoelorskia
did you cane from? A. / an a nutty.% of Moravia, sad I an
o PrOfoonor or the Chi-o rlon IV !thlyarstty at Prague, and a
Ilember of the Cinch HOS(141r.

Woe there in 0i:echo-Slovakia and, us I shall dhoti you,
outside of it some agitation for the livielon of Oseoho.
SleVakiii between Oteehe tni Slovaks? A, Outside of Oseoho•
Slovakia

Q No, inside it oonnenoele Woo there sa saltation for the
animation of Czechs sod Slovak'', 4. As everybody knows
there were Oome tendencies of that kind.

lu,

a
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'Ow	 •	 •	 '•1
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It	 •

Whet? A. was a suncerter of Dr.Ben es as the /ra g ident	 .
of the Republic anti as the Miniatim of Foreign . Affairs.

• ..	

You acknowledge d hie position, but ifore you no t opposed to
hia pollov porscmally, A. In many reepecte, yes. #.;„J;44.

• •	 •.•	 On the question of Czechs and Slovaks voro you in favour of
the autonomous Slovaks, A. / do not know what you are

,111,1p, 	 • driving at, Those are political questions. If I am putt

under examination as to my ;articular opinion, why should I;.
be, my Lord?

....MP JUSTICE CRO011 etWNTIISON: I do not know. It is unusual when
an interpreter is callel, hut this is an unusual ease per-
bop. lot me a e.  if I eon put it in some form which will
not hurt anybody's feelings. You knew of the egitation
for giving the Slovaks in Osecho-Slovekivoosai sort of
separate position, end you are salted whether, in so far as
you took any interest in that sort of thing, you were in
timothy with their having it. It is not quite a political
question and It is not suggested, as I understand it, that
you were engaged in political agitation.

IRS WTTRII88: Would you rapist your question, lel Lord?
SEBJEANT SULLIVANs lir Lord has put it to you, were you in

sympathy with whet I way call the Slovak movement? A. I
was to sympathy with the Slovak Oathollos, of course, as a
Oseeho-Slovakism and as a netball°, 	 .

.Q Was Dr.Benes vary strongly opposed to that, A . Tee.

Q Were you a supporter of Dr. Banes? A, Yes, as almost all
Czechs.

.,.•	 @ I do not want to pursue that. I Just want to got to the
history of the time. Was the Slovak movemoot supported
by the Polish regroups mintnt 4o,1 on:Anspi Bow A. Which
*Wombat, there war« soworal,

ta WaS tnq IdAo of a separate Slovak authority assistoi by the
Polish Foreign Minister, Oolonal Beek? A, I cannot answer
that question bSOOnew I 4101114 have to see wow loomonte,	 •
I have not soon any special doauments tha* there was any
official support for a spacial Slovak movemont before 11430,,

11 80 in 2938 or.' TOW not aware that there was no disguise
about it that Colonel Book WOO in favour of C 8090We Sloisqi
nuthortty, Were You not then aware of it? A, I was not
in CSeohaeSlOVakia. I was for th e fuller right or th,
Slovoks in the Oseoho•Slovakion sopuhlio,

I had peened from that. I asked you 'bother the agitation •
to that eml had the .ven eupport of Colonel Book, the Polish

• Poroign	 A. I do no* know.
•11B7BAIT OULLIVANt You do not know that, That is a perfrot

answer, •
MR JUSTICE OROOV•ZORBSONI Ther m coons to b.' a certain amount
. .ot anbiguity about this. Of course, on autonomous Slovakia

-"Y within the area of the Os oshosSlavakianitonntlio lo ono
thing,

4%1
•Zt-

BB JUST= OROON•JOBWOOBI A separate 8totf! of 81ovollin MI that
Unto is another thing.

811RJRAMT BULLIV411; !es, Vow Milo,

7.
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.8ER4SAIT SULLIVANt Yes, my Lord.

MR JUSTICE CROOM-JONNSONt It wan not quite Olivier to me which

you were putting to this gentlemen. I rather gather that lie

one of his difficulties. As a oseoh0:810yekian be feels

that one thing might be right aril the other wrong.

WIRJEANT STILL/TAN: And he is perfectly right, within or with.

out the empire. Scmte of u , have experienoed that considers.,

tion elsewhere (To the witness); Whet I am earning to is

thief Were not the supporters of Slovak autonomy • you sai

it would be within the Oseahe .81cvskian State • assisted by

the Polish Foreign Minister? AO 1 do Oat WSW.

t% You do not know? A, Row could I know?

Q Very well, Vow let us see what happened. You have studied

the motter. There came Munich and then the oecuption of

Prague, You know that the Plaintiff here hod gone to

Poland, did you not? A, Yes,

„Q You knelt that Dr, Banes, who MR been in ausorlog • /

try trio naive neutral expression • had at owe sought to

put himself at the head of a liberation movement? A. I do

not think so. I have been here in London, and at the

beginning ther e was no leeler of *he movement.

Th*rw was no leader, but did You not boar of the utrattht

headed by Dr. Bones and su pported by the Ambossadore amIC

00unalllors of the Osocho.elovabian /Mote in !cretin

countries? Did zou never ?learnt that?	 A. At the;

beginning there wa g no Mr, Bones, / wee bore in Lemon end

• ' I know vary well that tror o wary several vonorote mnoments.

Vr,Denes came afterwards.

A' In the eOnfusien that existed there were several movements

en Intended to be directed to liberottet? A, We, •

2 And General ProboU In Poland was ovsonlaIns an nromd twee

to mist the Poles, you Mow that. OA you not ?

A Yea •

le,

f



:Prof. F. ItORMrs
Crose•oxaminel.

!bete wes-thiefgentleman gmbermkt hevat an opponent_ of
Dr.:B•ines, mil be not 1 A. Yos, he'eeemel so: not always.

Bit he, as my friend his told us, had written a book -
aontrasting-Dr. Bones With Colonel Bock as a friend of the
Slovaks, had be not 4 A. I do not know anything about . •
this bock, •	

.

Did you never road this -book t A. Ho, never.

BUt you knew he was opposed to Dr. Rome t A. Yoss butnary 0400,0 wore appossi to Dr. B anos, oven in Caeohoslo-
vokia.
80 . you say, and to a groat nuMber .of people have said, A
great n. oumbr of people were opposed to pr. nenas	 quite
honestly oPPos ed 4 A. Yes...:1

01, ThevIhoUght that he was going th e wrong way about..
liberation 4 A. Va.

Be thought he was going the right way	 Or do not you
Molt that t A. Ask Mr. Boom.

./

Ton would not admit the honesty of your olvonent whoever it
is t A. Tea, to a certain extent.

Now let us sea what other people thoro were, Dr. Bones
was at the head of tha Nationol Committee, was be not ?
A. But who has put him at the head of the national Committee?

q Assuan that he assuawl that office himself without anybody
putting him there. Me became bead of the Bettonal Committee,did he not 4 A. The thing is not awaimple as it seems,
I vas, fortunately, or unfortunately, not mixed up-in those —
smell things, because / cos hero in London. After Munich
andOuring the empation by Hitler of Osechoslovokia, I.was.
one of the vary few Ceaoh people who were on London. I
spoilt went immeliately to the Legation and urge,' our
people at the Csaaboslovokian Logotien to do all they could •
to resist the UeoupationitY Germany, end I suoaeodeds but
the only thing at this time thew could do for our Liberation

• Movement was to Stay at our Legation.
I do not want all this, r iust wont the foot .. There was
some criticism of Dr, Rends by a number of Csaohoslovakiona
was there not t A, The enormous enJorit, of CaPoboslova . •
klang, there woe a very small minority who was for Renee
-after Munich.	 -

Q. . Apart from the National Committee	 whof ich Dr. Banes /moon.
.,:=;	 the hood or olaimed to act as the berm, had there been a

?rine Minister by the mime of 404ea t A. Tes t he egle in
London.

q Ant did this gentleman become Preeidont of Another Libmoe
• tion Committee callei the Motional Connell I A. Zia.
q %Intim o rival body to the National Committee 	

/

. A. At I Vim the aim of this Wee MoveMent woo to form
0. ono limited Cieohoelovaltion body Inina could

nd
	really

represent the whole Oseeb e Slovak Notion end fi 	 as
a -real.**Drosermative of the whole Co0ohan4 Slow Nation
rgr.che ilhoratiOn or the amoeba and Slovaks, ?hoe said
that the MoWenent of ltr. Renee did not represent the whole

.	 of the Osoohoelovek Nation. That is whet Mr. Hodes has 4One.

■■•■••••••■•	
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,	 •	 •
4 . You ;sent a little tooter, but you did give me some

inforMitions that Rcid ge was claiming that BOW represented

	

. • ,	
only Ocher and Rodza wee t he champion of the Czechoslo-
vaks , as s he not? X. Of the Slovak people?

• •

Q That was one of the differences between the two bodies. •
A. Mr.Rodze wee the representative of the daeohoelovek
Republic, end he had noted here in tendon.

••
Q The British. Government dealt with the rival party.

RR JUSTICE CROON JOMMBONI You are both speaking together on.
matter which is not so simple to me. What this gentlemen

hes geld so for is that the body which President Bones INIO

•.	 presiding over did not, acoording.to Mr. Rodca l s ides,

	

:	 represent the whole Ration? A. Yes.

JUSTIO CROON JORMBON; 	 the constituent ports of the

	

,	 organisation were / know not at the moment.

SDRJRAST SULt/VAMt The aceueation against Dr Jones was that
his was a One& Government, wee it not, wit gold he gig
ell for the Slovak*, did ha now, A. Re wee also for the
Oseehe. There wore two Committees es tor se I remember.
The tussah Motional Committee are the Slovak Motional
Osemittee, end these two Committees made * union sad /mese
o Oseehoslovekien Committee of which Ir.ledee (I was not
a member of thisMommittee, but I knew about its existenoe)
vas at the heed of tip Oomeittee, and his aim was to forca.
the webers of the other .0ommIttee to mekac big body
which realli . wenli represone the whole Osechoslovekien
motion.,••

• •

'MR '.7USTIOB aR6ou numoul I other from all that that be is
not agreeing with you, Sergeant.

811RJEAMT SULLIVAN, You see we are not trying here whether
•... °edits wee the Mani end not Short. All I vont'lm Lori

to appreciate is that there were s number of Movemeate to
• *. get the Germs out of CaeohoeloVabia, end a number of them

were hostile to Dr, Dense. I enliven% to ask you OW

ether questions did you oppreolatetbet any aotion by
Colonel Beate segregate - Slovak, end Cseohs in two
different Armies would be quite opposed to Dr, gems'	 •

.	 wishes. A. 1 de not know about whet Ni'. Donee hue done.

4 Z mill nit ask you one nure now. 4, I know very 'ell there
was a 0 0Casate Nasesent in Slovak *Loh beam mure violent
after the Munich Crisees but as the whole polIcy had
brought about catastrophe there was a general opposition
alelhat Dr. Soros wag t he Oseohe end Slovaks, end after
that moment the Slovaks Image onti4seehos1011kion ee :te

RR JUSTIOC CROON GOMM Do YOU know one wir or the other
whether in Poland after Muniohl end before the outbreak of
the war there wee any setting up of conecotc (web end
'operate Glow*	 p,bodies of troo	 A. After Punish, wy
Lord?

MR JUSTIN mod JORIS9/11 Tee. A. After Smith Br. ?rebels'.
eosethlng in Poland end the 'bole Nation regarded it as

the first thing done for the liberation of our Melon.

11 Were there separate Armies, if that is 00 ?WS ward, •
of Ossohs end Slovaks in Poland or erg separate banes
of troops, as we have here, Welsh, laglish, Irish ond Soots
Regiments?

14..
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SERMON SULLIVAN* Would you look et the Decree, 4.be3love
that the Plaintiff wanted to woods. eno . body.

NE JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON* Yos,

SIMS SULLIVAN: nut Colonel Back raised woo two Legions!
the Plaintiff wonted to organise one.

IR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON: "Ths Csaoh and Slovak legions are to
be constituted". Is there a langpagodiffioultv / do not
wan the difficulty we all have in Joking ourselves sequoia..
ad with Csaeb4 but es between Combs and SlovaVs is there a
lasuguage liffloulty! 4. There is a difference. The
Slovak Suitor is just on the we, to become an indeppourm
leelletfe, but the Bletake weed the Osai.sh langoge tor their
literature till the eni of the 10th Century; after thst
period they started to have their oun litevetura awl wool
in their own laiivage, Both languages are very similar.

• Myself I used to math in Oseeb to the Oseobs and Blanks
• sod they nolsratool Os well. I beard the'confessions of
• Simko end Omits *en I vas a priest in Paris for lofty

• yang end I bad no dirriessit7.
4 It it like the teemelerilan leennageet A. I believe they

sirs move sist13.ar. I an not a reel liniptist, but I hate
studied them. It 1i more sbeilsr titan Pella esti Bee*,
snob sera similar.	 • •••••

■

PaanailaWILUSI

4 Tee loco said. I %Mak. the majority or pools atter Danish
ust in opposition to Dr. Banal. Oan jon tall us the data
Sr appromimately the date token Dr.Benes stalyped he

• Prosidenoy id Osadislotoldat 4, 1 do not remanbor the
onset date, but it is tory **ay to find out.

4 . Tat On take the Ste fres me. sat I Irkll prove it. Do
. .- yen sennaber it au jut atter SWUM A. Tel. .

-..f,	
.	 .	 .	 .

...o.: 	 4 Di0127 or molly Above were Veeple ass tut the vim tut .. :
DIN Sean bee amen en astertnnete monk Re resign the..
t/seisteney % the ilepoaliat A. Teel nonelittPla MOMPt •list it sat Um been batter it be 3o4 mislaid before.

. ,	 •	 ••,	 .4 De you %new whether he moved Wulf entirely, end lest
..:	 the ealstryt A. Yee, he beans a privets pavan Ma,,..
•,,	 embed, also. Ili los a Pootener, I think, at a lligh Selloal

in bays • sane Met iteheel, I Os net bus *Leh • a:.:.:	 .beWA Selma, an! vas artesian* pransop
MiLlits

1
; at she thatureltri I de net senelbe

s
r that

be •VIIF Zestured there. he net thet petition aben ha
• swivel the 1,111110411“.

a to quite Speahly the _position 1108 list loving ?Wiped the
Pseeitlaray sal blooms a private eitlion het after Daniell.

	

.	 be MOM the title or PresIdemt *nets In IMIA after
the Greet Sir bad started? A. Ms, list is b340.

1111111LininaleliaAr	 '■

	

/	 111/21akaga1Aga
MO OIADI4 14, Lord, Ijave en Interpreter bero if vessels,/

but pour Zer4010 will probebb, find it easier to get *Zang
• es fir es Imo Os.

dr	 MO AMOR ON0011 g4NOMMOs I t* the bitter Oswald be

313.
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General Lev. EV01111142
EX4Minei.

• to swear the Interpreter at once, than in case of any need
the Interpreter can act. (To the witness): If you-tind
yourself in am. difficul ty in speaking or understanding,
anything in English, will yens say 80t and then the

....Interpreter will be available to help us all out,
• A. Thank you, my Lord.

WACLAW JAN ?AN:WI-SOW/ was sworn as Int:vA.0r. 

MR. SIAM: General Prohla, are you an Army General in the
• Csaohoslovakien Army 4. 	 A. Yes.

Q Are vou at present the highest' ranking officer in the
Czechoslovakian Army outside the (re AhAil loymas stet, t,

• A. Yes,

Are you at present llving at Eerie Orange, Milford, Surrey \?.•

	

,	 A, Yes.) e
I believe at the moment you have been retired some time from
the Active Lists is that right 4 A. Yens I am In

. enforaed military inaetivity.

•

Are you in receipt of a
Oseehosiewak Government
for my wife,

Q Are those the allowances
A. Yes.

subsistence allowance from the
4 A. Yes, L56 per month end £5

pertaining to an Arm General ?

•

Army? A. Ti,s, as o roc Lieutenant.

I believe you were taken prieoner by the Russians 4 A, yes,

, 4 You have changed sides, so to speak, because being 0 votive
• ., of Slovakia you wars antagonistic to the Austro-flandarlim

•!Wire, VW. voumot t A. Yes.

Q Wary you made, In ISM a Captain of the daeohoslovek
-Fosses in 8uotia t A. / 'coined the gcechosiovak Liberation.
MOvmment in Susie and kilned the Oceohoslovrk Legion in
1911111 a Second Captain.

4. Did you sommend the 8th Regiment Which took pert lathe
Battle of Ussurig on the Ural /rent 4. A. Yes, In July To
took oassend of the 8th Reglmant and was five months on
the Dasurig, end attarwards on the Mel.

4 Wan. 'you then promoted to Colonel and given the ',amend of
the end.Ossohosloyak Division in the offensive of ierm in
Noamber of 1918 A. In December 1018 I commanded the
find Csechoalovakia Division in the offwnolve ow Perm,

4 in 1.910 were you given the command of the 3rd Oseohoslovak
Division A. in 1910 I was In command of the Ard
Osschoslovok Division. •

• 4 I think you left Russia with your troops in Jay 1920 and
the* you returned to Cseohoslovskia t A. Yes.

Poen 1992 to 1998 did you study4tIlitary tactics at the
Superior Military School In Paris t	 A. Ites. •

it

• • 4 I WIIMA 0.91 VIIPti0111611 of your Army enro ll:. 	believe
M ir* volmovs of age / 11.15le

.

4'

Zn 1016 Sive you eervta as a Lieutenant in the Austrian

4

a
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)11 . a pert of your service	 A, Yog,

”

g And in Sept ember of 192:i w ere you a ppointed to the command
# 0 Of the First Czechoslovak Brigade at Husomberok in Slovak/al'

The First Czechoslovak Mountain Brigade,

,v

I Poliovo you worn
1924	 A. 1924.

res that Brigadier
was only one grade'
General,

Womotad General jy thp fellowing

4Anorg l or what	 . A. In this time there
of leneral in CsechosAovakia -- only

In 1925 were you givAn the comnend of the 12th Infantry
Division ut Ushorod in Subeorpctneuo Rul g ig V A. YeA4

In 1927 were you made a General of that Division V A. yes,

And from 3.929 to 1933 were you Deputy Ohio!' of Staff	 '
A, Yes, at ?rap*.

Row do you pronounee I.n-g-r V A. I-n-g-e-r.

At that time was there a General Ingr who was subordinate
to you V, A. There wee o Colonel ingr who was in oherge of
the Operational Bureau of the General Staff,

At tiny rate, is the gentleman who was then Colonel Ingr,
to-day General Ingr, the Minister of Defence of the Czech
Government in London la, A. Yes,

Asel he was suboreinate to you at that time V. A. Vs. •

I believe it was in 1935 that rou wore promoted to full
Army General v Ite Y411.

and was General /nap then in commend of a Reserve Army Corps
in the Army ocemonded hr you V A. In September 1938 Iwas
in almond of the 4th Army in Moravia ord General /ngr was
in command of the Reserve Army Corps under my oomemnd.

Oohing to September 1939, I believe, as you cell us, basins
regard to Munioh, or before Munich, general mobilisa tion of
the Oseohoslovok hrmy was ord ered ... on the 93rd September
3939 P A, Yes,

• • •

Were yen at that time in commend of the 4th Army	 A, Yes,

And shortly thereafter in coward of the 3rd Army
A. After Runich, from the 4th October,

Following upon Munich, of course, demobilisation teak place?
A, No, the general mobilisotion'took place on the 83rd
September, Munioh was the 99th.

4 Are you talking about mobilleotion or demobilisation•f.
A, The demobilisation commenced after Munich in Uoravls,
and only some few weeks afterwards in Slovakia,

After the demobilieation did you sommand the Army in
glowahla and Corpstheen Russia until the 19th January 1959?
A. Vs, the 3rd Army,

Wore You then appointed Minist er for Corpetheen Russia by
the OSecheslovek Government of the 2nd Republic under
Dr, Reeks Y. A, Yes.

■le
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Mho question was interpreted).

ORMAN BULL/VANs I en told that the Interpreter is talking
relish,

TEE IBTPAPNETERt Yes, I was,

TAB ETTNEBSt I understand Polish perfectly, my Lord,

TEE /NTERPBETFAt May I explain why

NE, JUSTICE ORM MINIM* NO, You neel 2144 explain,
(To the attunes), Is it just the some to you whether you
spank to him in Polish or In Oseoh t

THE INTERPERTRIII I suppose so,

TEE W/TUB881 Tose

MR, anitT/01 ORM JONIBONS Could you give us the aoswer in
.Englion then we shall have no question about it.
A, I woo only consernel with the raising of the Legion
never with any political question in Poland.

NRAIADEt would your Lordship be good enough to give me th0
answer to that question/

,	 &peril IRV. PROBAIAt
•	 tomined.

/telieve you hold that office of Minister until the
Occupation of Oseohoslovakis by the German Army in March
of 10394 A, Yes.

q . I think the actual dat e , as bought it,. was the 15th March
1939 10 A. The 18th March lASO,

q The moment that the Onion Arme °coupled your country, did
you make up your mind to go to Poland 4 A. Yes, at ono..

4 I ought to have oskei you thist I believe you now have a
son serving in the Oseoh P014401 with the British Army in

P North Africa 4 A, Up son was serving with inc in Poland
and now he is in great Britoint a few reells Ogg he came to
Great Britain from Tobruk,

on the night of the 24th/25th May MO into Poland 4 /tam,.

Did you go to Poland with the intention of raising a
Oseohoslovok Legion in blond to fight side by side with
the Polish Perroes 4 A, To save the honour of the former
Oseehoslovok Army.

' 	 •

:`•;'

••;:

111.-;

•••:'

You took the viows_did you not, as 	 than	 that the Germans
would attack Poistd Just as the, had attatkod your own
country	 A, Vas, I was convinced of it.

q Was your object in going to Poland to assist the Polish
Formes with a view to the ultimate 'liberation of your own
°entry, Oseahaalowma P A. I Gannet say that boomse
we were too Iwo,	 The Polish Army wos o wept	 ond honourablo.
Army	 but to fight together stronger and stronger with	 ..
the Polish Amy for the liberation of Oseohs and Slovaks
end my fear Fatherland,

1048/ADVt Ponape this question could be put to him in
Gooch, if I do not make it °leapt	 Were you in anyway
oftsornod with the difference between Climbs and Slovaks
or were you solely oonoarnod with raising a Legion to
assist Poland t

rn

•;"
q

" •	 •

I believe you actually a postle*/ the Frontier, did you not,

ii
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Genera/ LEV PRCRALAI-
Exandned.

MR. JUSTICE CR01 41 JOHNSON: %was concerned only with the
raising of the Legion" (es rheard it) "and never with
the potation in Poland".

SIADEI Before you want to Poland did you discuss your
proposal to 40 there with the Prime Minister _General
A, At this time, yes, with the Premier Ellasp.wbo . eas shot
afterwards, by the Gomm,

Si was murdarei by the Germans in 1942 t A. Yes.

Did you go there with his full co proval	 A. With his full.
approval.

2 Who was the Chief of the ilenaral Staff in Poland at this
time t A. At this time it was General Stsohiewice.

Had hi been a Pella* Student with you at the Staff College
in Paris 7 A. Yes, he was a Pillow Stud ent in Paris from
1921 to 1923.

9 Was he a great friend of yours t A. Re was a' good friend.

were you anxious to convey to him
felt that Germany %mull Serve his
serval yours 7 A. Yes, / WOO.

the conviotion which you
Country just an Om, hod

• <I I believe on reaching Poland you went to Warsaw, did you
not 7 A, Yes,

Soon after your arrival,- in the early part of June 1039,
• -did you hove en int erview with General Stachiewiaz
• 14. Yes, I had my first int erview with General Stachiewios
• at this time.

Did you tell him
intention and of
Legion in Poland

ot I believe he wits
sceptical,

9 About Germany'a intentions t A, Yes,.

But he welcomed your suvestion about the Legion and asked.
You to write a Mmsornmium about It, and von wrote e
Memorandum and gave it to him 9 4, Yea, I 414,

4. At that time who vas the Isaohoolovak Sinister in Warsaw t
A, Thera was nobody.

ft nobody there 7 A, Nobody there,

Who had been immediately before the German annexation Of	 •
Osoohoslovskio 4' A, Before the German annexation of
Csaohoslovokia there was Pr, Slovik,

believe uttnr the onnowetion of oseahhelevehle the Germano
oullol loon the Polish Government to disband the nheehoelh.
vsk Legation in Warsaw 7 A. Yas,

Q And the Poles aosoliod_with that demzn4 or request', is
that right 4 ito The Minister loft . lor the nnitod Statee
Pnd there remained only a few members of the Staff of the
•mptions The holm were very friendly towards the
CsoahOslovek Legation, .

of your oWnvistion about Germany's
your pro)osel to form a Czechoslovak
t A. Yes, I did,

rather sceptical 	 A. Yes, he wee



General IV/ /10/9.1A s

Ibtamirade

Iwantto iski this very shortly, because I Will leave
you to deal with various matters from now onwards in
arose-examination, but while vou ware in Poland did you • .
have several interviews with Genaral Ingr ? A, Yes, I had.

And was Oeteral Ingr 011X/OUS to persuade you to submit
•entirely to the authority of Dr, Bowie? A. Yes, ha Wee.

Finally, did Dr.Ranas inform you that if you were prepared .
• to submit to his authority • he inform al 70u through Mr.
•Slavik, I think? A. Yes.

A" If You Were kzaporad to submit t o his authority he would
appoint you Generalisaimi of the csochoslovak Legion in
.Po nd? A, Yes, no did,

q I will not go into the masons now, but eventually you did
consent to aocept the authorit y of Dr. Banes, is that
right?	 A, Yea,

And did you sign some document?	 A. I signed a dominant
of my accept.ance.

,	 Thereafter, about the and of August 1930, just before the
• Gamma marched into Poland, did Dr. Renee appoint You

Generalissimo of the Czechoslovak Perces in Poland? 4 A, Yes,

AI AO WA kW, you were equally acceptor) bythe Polish Govern.
• meat and by Marshal Smigly Ryds, who was Generalissimo of

the Polish Forces? A, Yes,

• de not think / need ask you anything more axone to take
• YOU through the libel of whiah you aomplaina. 4hst to
complete the 	 I believe that the moment the °orlon
Ificiroes invaded Poland you issued on Order of the Day to the
troops did you not?	 Yes, I 41d.

q But events moved with snob rapidity that the Germans
occupied Warsaw in a vary chart ageoe of tie.? A, Not
Warsaw, but we were forced to •annunta Wonsan on the 5th
leptanber by Order of the Polish General Staff.

q You had not the arms are equipment to resist? A. Wa.

X.:rata/ tv

Q

I believe, in order to assist von further still ■ or
rather to **arrant, you • on the 17th September the
RUS01078 also took a hand in over-running Poland?
A, The Soviet Army entered ?eland to find the Minister who
was in charge of the political affairs, I woe takon .

Sooner by the Soviet Army with my Chief of Staff, Majorj.

Eventually you around the Frontier into Roumania and got
here after a stay in Parini is that right?	 A. Yes,

I just want you to take in your hand, if you would not mind
the Statement of Olaim, As / read it in 241110 no doubt
you eon follow the similar passage in Osami s A, / have
it in English.

I went to start with the wOrds "Thera were several attempts
to create 8 schism and to set up an opposition within our
Liberation Movement", Do von sae those words?	 A. Yes,

I will read MI "In two oases in Poland and in Franca till
the complications were solved for pi by the everts them.

110,
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General LEy PRCHAIA:
Examined.

Authee . Now firstly, did you ever sm .ke an attempt
7.

Opiate a sohlsm? A. Never.

'I Did you ever attempt to vet up an opposition with Dr.Senes,.
at anyone else's Liberation Movem ent? A. Never

• Bad.you anything to dO with Yr. Kahanek? A. No, he was
working in his own way, and I was forming my Legion without_
any interference from Mr. Kehanek.

,

• As I understand from what you hav e already told us,
„
 yam were

forming your Liston with t he approval of the Czechoslovakian
Prime Minister and with th , opooval of the Poles.

b question in direct examination

4.

SIRJRAIM SULLIVAN' Is thbt
at is it b statement?

O VR SIADVI I thought he toll us so. Na mentioned the man who
was murdered by the Clarions in 1942. A. Elias.

q I will wry on. Mere you anything to do with at is
-	 the Book Regime in *'eland? A. No, I was a guest

rh;;I:dA:ind I did net even see Minister Beck beyond what

To put it generally, Impa you ooncerned with politics or
with the military situation, A„ At this time?

Q At that time, A. No I was not ooncerned with Panties.

It. I am talking now of between May 24th and 25th of 1939 when
you Grossed the Polish Front ier, and the let or 3rd Septem-
ber when you were appointed Uneralistimo of the Czechoslo*
Takla Legion in Poland • in those four months?
A, I was not oonoernel.

q 'twill read on a little' lower dawn. "In Paris all our
diffieulties”, now look at the next words, "far more
'serious than the pitiful attempts to create a separate
Liberation Movement in Poland" .004 yel . at any time evep.
attempted to tweet* a separate liberation Movement in	 •
Poland? A. / created the first liberation Movements the
first armed Liberation Movement.

10 there any other? A, There vas not an y other Movement
at this time,

/ do not know what time is r eferred to,

•

 but will ask you
this, 'In Great Rwitein a small group of unsatisfied 	 -
individuals attempted to 'impose themselves, trying to
exploit the more or less justified grievances tget had
Of the leadership in the time when • R000rding to their
opinion • the demoorat ic world" and so ens when di d you
first reaeh Great Britain? A, in June 1040,

Ak any rote if this artiele it intended to include you la 	 '

thie t einoe June 1040 have you ever tried to exploit(
&Women to get hold of any tons of leadership In Great
Britain? A. Boo

.4
 r

in14 you windlooking .o little bit . lower !loon where it says
It ia ohopooterietio that all these shadows ',MO fell

on the unity of our soliond Liberation hoeenent il • just
help is about this, / see the phrase operand Liberation
*Menet when was the first liberation Movement t
A, ;Refere the Orme Wey,

•
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General LRV ERCRAZA:
Examined
Cross-examined.

didn't leave any lasting traces and were always of en
absolutely different substance emanating from liffesent
grnups end t endanoies. This proves that they were too
obviously grounded in personal or party ambitions or
that their objective cause wee swept away by timely
reforms in our organisation". By what motives were you
inspirel when you went - ( This shall be translated to you).
Ai I understani.

Q - when, on the 24th/25th May 1939 you want to Poland to
form to Czechoslovak Legion? A. My only motives were
honour, to Bev. and restore the honour of my Army and
liberate my Nation  rem (lemon domination.

9ms-examined by , SERJEANT SU

Tell ma, General, do 7ou approve of Dr, news?
(The question was interpreted).

SELMAN SULLTVANr No conv ersation with the witness, please.

IR JUSTICE CROON JORRSONr Can you answer *hat question?
A, If I approve Dr. Renee?

q Do you approve of Dr,Bene•? A, I cannot understand very
wells if I approve Dr,Benes?

Q yea,	 A, When, at which time?

MR, JUSTICE CROON JOMRSON: Now, I think i t •1,
•	 •••	 •	 .

MAIM SULLIVAN, Take it now,

MR. JUSTICE CROON JOVMSCOs Do 'cu Agree with hir, first . of
allt A, About what,

=MAW SUELIVANr All right, very well, leave IP there, When
you went to Poland you have mentioned this gentlemen Mlles,
or whatever his name is? A, Elias. Yes.

q Was he the authority set up after the Germarsoocupied
Cseohoslovskia? A. Re wan Premier of the Oevornment in
the Protectorate.

Q That is to say, in the °fumed	 A, Yes.

rt. After the annotation? A. Yea.

q Did you know that Dr. Dienes had put himoelf at the head of
an OrganisatiOn1 A. No, fir,

TO did not, Did you object to giving obelisnoe to orders of
Dr. Donee'? A. D11 .130M1 resigne4 from Isis Presidency on the
6th October 1938. Re left his country in the greatest desperew
tion, and I did not suppose that he would try to direct the
fortunes of my country again,

I think that gnawers sty firdt question very excellently.
When you want to Poland was Colonel Book at that time the
Persian Minister of Poland? A, At that time Colonel Beek
was Foreign Minister in Poland,

I Did you know that Colonel Beck had been supporting the
Germane at Munich • the policy mf the cormono? A, I did
not know this, becalm.* it woo on agreement of four greet.
Powers.

22,
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General tmv PRONAIAt
Cross-examined.

•Q If you did not know it, you lid not know it	 A. Thwy did
not need the suroort of colonel Beek.•

-
• 4 When you went to Poland was it not rou • Intention to
, • orgeniee a single armed body repreeenting Czechoslovakia' 9"

.A,.My intention was to raise a LogionoUlimmanand SlOrake,
because at this time there was e Slovak Stet.' recognised by
many Powers.

1 That is .4 :wetly what I Cent	 ..	 .	 .	 .	 .
RR:JUSTION CROP, PINSON: Does that mean . OhloOhit it'll'.
. one Legion or one Army oentsining both COOS aed . Slovaki? -

A. Yes.

Or separate Arnie° 9 A. o, MY Lord.

4 One Aram 9. A. One Army containing (hitch', Slovaks and
even Rumanians.

SIDMAN SULLIVAN: There was to bar yon say, one Army, but
there were to be separate Divisions, Ossobsin oney.Sloveks
in another 9 A, There never was a division between Czechs
erg Slovoks.

. Q I did not ask you Oat. You have lust told M14 0_ 70U seer
that several powers had recognised the Slovak Nation,

RR JUSTICE. cROum Puusoui No, the Slovak State,

BRABANT WIAIVANs The Slovak State as being something
separate from the Oseoh State .. several NOtione took that
view 9 A. Several Nations recognised Slovekle.:7

RR JUSTICE OR0011 JoHiMORs That is after 	 A, After the
lOth Marsh,

ORMAN SULLIVANI At the time you went toPoland Colonel Back
moguls*, the Slovak Ctato, did he not • the Poles
reoognised the Slovak State 9	 A. /Os,

gg gums . May I suggest it octal be better with a foreigner.
.	 to put one question at s time. The first question was with

regard to Beak, and the other was the Poles, Ha has already
said he knew nothing about the Seek Armament,

RR. JUSTIN CROON TORPONt As / have it at the element., he
says the Poles recognieed the Slovak State,

SRUIAIT SUILIVAR, Did 70U notice that the Polish Decree that
•anctioned your activity In Poland contemplates not one
Legion, but more than one 9 A, Yes, / noticed It,	 • '

.	 .
el You notioed that	 A. Yes,

4 . And . did you see that it recognised, that it contemplated,
• there would be Slovaks in one Legion and Czechs In another

Legion	 Did not yOu understand that that was the meaning
. of the Polish D ecree 9 Inside of the one Legion Of
OsechoelOveks .therW would b a a Legion of the omit state,

• Is that right, and a Legion of the Slavok State.?
A. go, no Sir, a Legion of Ozeohe and a Legion of Slovaks 9

los, A, There wee note Osech State at thii *lee, It was a
Protectorate Orri We were onlf refugees, Wahl or Brovaks,

•.--Irre.••••••••	 **-- 1

• r:



General IEV PROHALA:
Cross -examinee',

A, Da facto, The Slovak State visa de facto a State.`:\

MR JUSTICE CROO2d JarNSulit I do not quite unleretand thiss'
• question. I can un ri orn tend a f ore ign Power recognising a
• State or not. There may be deficloncies in my knowledge or
• my upbrirtging, but I lo not uriderstand an individual saying

he recognises U State, nor do I think it matters.

SWR,TEI,K, SULLINAN: I lo not an he vas a diplomatic person!
I mean in hie own mind,

Wit JUSTIC7 CRO0U -J0tD4i;ON: Do you mean by our question that
no aoo p pted it?

SERJEANT SUILIWN: He accepted it. 	 1
MR JUSTICE CRO0U-JOI THSONi Awl Ages going to stick to it

was going to work against it. 	 •	
4;.

•

SERJEAWT SULLIVAN I Acce pt it is ihut I aisant . When you Said
you r 0oognised 4e facto a 32.0Vtik Stap4, 411 •tou accept that
an being the basis on which you would bon •tiot yourself?

I was willing to fight rlermany in all circumstance5?
even if Czechs were not, I was willing to fight.

1. That does stotarmwer the question I put to you. There were,
as you 'haw* told us, Slovak refugees in Poland and Czech

'	 refugees NI Poland? A. Yes.

ft Were the Slovaks in Poland in ?our opinion separate people
from the Czechs? A, Thoy were Slovaks,

I think you answ erel that the Slovak State had been
recognised as a State?	 A. Yoe.

bid you recognia* th e Slovak State as a State?

•51'.
Ti■oy were. Slovaks? A, Yea

A samipte Nation? A, A separate Nation,

The Slovaks were a separate Nation, and being a separate
,1.1 Nation Warn they to have their own Regiments and Divisions?
' t• Aa In TAY mind the Decree of the Provident of Poland was

Only fennel; it was only to 1' OM a force that he hod
recognised the Slovak State, Poland was forced to it on
the paper Czech and Slovak Legions, hut I am sure that
nobody in. Poland thought that there would be two Legions
beoaute there ware Cze-h and Slovak Ingions under my oomsorsi,

NW . JUSTICE (MOOD JORNSONs If von want to develop this I
think we had batter do it tomorrow morning.

(Ldjarna I till tomOrrow at 111.411411.)
4
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' .. 111i :LEV. PRORALA,	 Reoslled. 

'011006-0001I1ATION continued by SIRJEANT SULLIVAN

I sm .not going to occupy muen4more of your time and I bops. 	 !L

• that you appreciate that here is nothing. personally hostile

In helm asked emotions. You wi3.1 understand my position.

as your own. I just want to ask one or two questions.

Did you object to the claim of -- . to use a neutral expres-

1110n	 the BOMB Party that you should render unconditional

obedience to them/	 A. When?

When you went to Poland and started the seams of organising.

tires there. When the Besse Party made representations

to you did you object to unconditional obedience?

.A, Yes.

Did you oonsidor that the direction of the Movement in .

• . Poland Should he bat in your hinds? 	 A. Inas sent by my

nation 	

There is a rule of unconditional obedience here that you

should answer the question. I did not sok who sent you or

anything. I asked did you wish that the leadorehip and

direction of the Movement in Poled should be left to you?

A. I had no political intentions and no paitioal asibitionO

My only intention was to mate a fighting tom.



MR L. PRCHALAs Cross -exd.

Q Having executed that manoeuvre, wil' you answer the
. question. 'Xas it your wish that the conduct of the 	 ,
Movement in Poland organising the fighting force there
should be left in your hands?	 r. I dui'.	 I organised..
there the fighting forco.

• JLZTL;T : CAOOL:401:;!so1	 I vpposo that is an simmer, is
it not. If in fact he did it, he must have intended

SWEAPT SLILIVAI:s Yes. (To the witneae) g	It was your
force. You objected to the interference of the 'denes
Party with your plans, did you not? A. Not on the whole,
only concerning . the oeganieation of the fighting force.

3ERJUAYT :3 ;;LLI1ANI You objected in part, we may take it, to
the interference of the Bones Party with your plans?

NR JUSTICE CIIC;014-.10.hV301:: I want to understand what that means.
There are tvo senses in Which that ray be right. One is
that they were interferine with what you regarded as the
soldier's job and the other that they were interfering in
some political sense? 	 *ies, my Lord.	 They did not .	 .
want the creation of the W5ion or fighting force in Poland.

Q You say they did not want it?	 A. They did not want it.

Q And you did?	 A. Yes, I did, my Lord.
•

Q Is it in that sense that you are telling the learned 	 .
Counsel that you objected to---- 	 A. .... to any inter-
ference with the creation of a fighting force against -
Germany.

SURJEANT S1LLIVAV: You can refresh your memory with your"
diaries if you wish to answer this queation. Did you at
ore point ma'," up your mind that if the Renee Party did not
f41 in with your plans and the Polich plans, that you 	 .

' would resign and Was a Comeission in the Polish Army?
A. You will allow re to correct. you •- not the Polish plane.
It was only my plan to create a fighting force in Poland.

NR JUSTICE CROON-JOHNS%) Before we deal with that difference
between yowl should like to see how far he goes with you.

SZAJEAP: OLLIVAN: Certainly, my Lord.

YR JUSTICE cRo•r.Joinison cio the witimash Were you at one
time contemplating resienine your Commission as an Officer
of the C'echoslovae Army after you arrived in Poland?
A. I once told ooneral Ingr it there will be no Legion of
Czechoslovae in Poland I am resigning and I will enter the
Polish Porooe as a simple soldier.

Q Mien you say as a simple soldier, you mean as u Private?
A. Yes, my Lord,

61HJEANT SULLIVAN: I want to call your attention to your vlih
memorandum in your diary of the 23rd June 1939. I will
read the translation supplied to us by your Voile/tore.

1 Is this a correct copy of your own memorandums "At 6 poi.
talk with General iner t He tries to portends me again to
accept the principle of unconditional obedience and see Me
to s pecify precisely my point of vier. Here it iss I
reoognise everyone who will be at the head of the resistane
but I shell remain in Poland and I want to Work there in
accordance with sensible geperal directions if London
recognises neither my work" •■ now note the next Words

26.



"nor the wish of Poland".

MB L. pSCHALAI Droaa-exd.

. MR JUSTICE CROOM.JOHNSON: Had you not better finish the
sentence?

-SEIJEAFT SULLIVAN: "I shall resign end join the Polish .Anay"
A. Yes. It was in a certain way.a wish of Poland to help
us, to help Czechs and Slovaks to create an army or legion
to put right what he could not at home.

Q That was what %ahanek was preaching too, was it not? You
knew him?	 A. Y08.. .	 ,

.Q Re was also preaching that The salvation of Czechoslovakia
was in letting the Poles help them? . A. Yes, and he was
right.

Q Rather than Dr.Benes. His book was contrasting the two
principles of Colonel Beck helping you or Dr. Berms?
A. At this time it was only Poland which oould.help us.
There was not any Czechoslovakia and there was not any
President of the name of Danes. At this time he was in
the U.S.A. as a University Professor.

Q You will understand I am not saying you are wrong. We do
not take sides one way or the other in this Court. You
may have been quite right. I only want to get the facts.
'Wow I wart to know, in view of all that, what is your
objection to the Movement in Poland being called after your
name. It was your Movement, was it not? 	 A. I do not
understand.

I. MR JUSTICE CROOM.JOHOSOY: There are two questions there.
(/Do you mind putting the second one first?

• =MIT SULLIVAN, The Movement in Poland was your )ovement?
A. The creating of an Arm, yes, it was my work. It was.'
net a politioal Movement. It wee, first of all, a real
military Movement.

..Q . What is your objection to that Movement being called by
your name? A. I have no objection, because the Sth
is called after General Montgomery. The Army in Poland
was called after the General heading this force,

Q There is only one more question I want to ask you. Was
that Movement favoured rather by the Slovak Party than by
the Hones Party? A. Would you kindly repeat your question

Was your Movement in Poland supported by the Slovak Party
-	 that was opposed to Wanes, A. I had nothing to do with

the Slovak Party *doh was opposed to Dr, Sense. I smir
had to do with Slovake and Oseohs who'vers willing to fight,

VI /ISTIOV OROOM0408/100/4 Do you mean by that that you dealt \•
solely with individuals oho were refugees in Poland?	 •

A. 700 9 WI Lord, with people who came to Poland to fight .
against Germany.,

=WANT ODIUM, I was not suggesting that you were
member OSe Party. What I asked you Via did you find that
yowl scheme was more popular with Slovaks who desired to
be eeparatedrom Czechs?	 A. I.do not know, Perhaps try
intentions to fight Germany were move popular with the
Slovaks admen with the Ouch Party because there were in
ammo ow people opposed to the derma Yam.-	 .

•
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Q And the period that we ere diacusein3 is your aotivities
in Poland between the 24th and 25th May, when you crossed
the border and went to Warsaw, and the oommencement of the
present war so far as Poland is ooncerned on the let &totem.
bar, 1939?	 A, Yea,	 .

Q What position was occupied by Lr, Bones, so far as you
country was concerned, between May and the let September,
1939?	 A. I did not know it rightly became he was in

the u.I.A. I heard that he was a Professor at a United
States University.

So far as you know, was he authorised by anyone to place
himself at the head of any partioular liberation movement?
A. I did not think so. There were some former officials
of the Osechoslovak Legation atthe Consulate in the
United States who elected Or.Benes at this time the leader
of a body.

4

22.

KR L. PRCHALA: Crosa.exd.

MR JUSTICE CROOM-JOHESON, Just let us see that I have your
• answer right.	 I understand that you do not !mow whether
your gov,ment was more favoured by Slovaks than by Czechs?

. _ A..Vo, my Lord.	 - .., •	 _

• ti	
.	 .	 ..-	 .

CZ, Bu that is not quite the queaticn., whether yoUr Move.ment
aas more favoured by Slovaks than by the Bones Party.. As
ter as you knew, were the Benet; Party in Poland or *here
were they. Where was the Benes Party at this time, in
CzecheslovaIlo?	 A. At this time there was not any Bosse
Party, my Lord.

2 If that is right, it solves my difficulty.	 A. There was
\only 'or. Bones in the U.Z.A. and some of his followers

abroad from home.

SERSEAET BULLIVANs You say they did not deserve the name of
a Party who were in command of the Army on the Polish
frontier at the time of Munich?	 A. nn, I was in command
of the 4th Army which was on the former Austrian frontier.

Q You must have known that at the time the Germans marched'
into the Sudetanland Poland marched in on Coechnslovakie,
did she not? A. It was a separate agreement made between,

- Dr. Eduard Belies and the Poles and is not signed by Pants.
merit.

'OA	 Q But the Poles were in occupation of part of your country?
A. They got it voluntarily, they did not make it ly force.

Q Do you now perceive at all events that any Party formed
for the restoration of pre.Munioh Czechoslovakia-might
think that your Yovement in Poland was disruptive of that
idea. De you follow me?	 A. Yes, I follow you, sir.
do not supfoselt,-because all Kovements for liberation

.or Europe from Berman occupation, from Nazi terror, is in
favour of any people and not only of the Czechs,

RE.EXAMINEp by MR Go. SLADE.

2 You told us, I think, that Dr.Benea resigned the Presidency
of Czechoslovakia on the 5th Apas44, 1938I 'A. Yes,

Q Your country was overrun by the Germans we know or the
15th Varch, 1930?	 A. Yee.

'4•
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UR I.. PRCHALA Re-examined.

On the 51st August or the let September of 1939 did Mt
Slavik come to see you at your office?	 A. Yes.

He was the Czech Ambassador in Warsaw?	 A. Yes..

Was it on that occasion that he produced to you a Utter
from Dr.Benes? A. Yea. I do not remember exactly the
date of the day but it was either the 30th or 31st August.
He came to me in my office and produoed a letter from Dr.
Penes.

Q Was that the letter that you told us you ultimately signed
end handed back to him again? 	 A. Yes. In this letter
Draenes presented himself as chief of the liberation
movement elected by all the ambassadors and men of impor-
tance abroad and gave me an ultimatum to sign to J elin this
body and to be subordinate to him.

Did you say that he told you that Dr.Benes
of all the leading men/ A. Yes. Later
it was not true.

Q At any Imes, that is what you were told by
emissary of Dr.Benes on the 31st August or
ter/	 A. Yes,

Q You then at any rate believed it to be true
believed it was true.

Q And in feet you did sign that letter, did you net?	 A. I
signed that letter.

Q As a result of your signing that letter did Dr Renee
reoognise you as being in oomnand of the Czechoslovak
Legions in Poland?	 A. Yes. By this letter I was pat
in command of all the Czechoslovak forces in Poland and
the same letter Mr alaviks . the former Inkster in WareaS

- was designed as the political renpeaentattve ot 

• Serjeant Sullivan asked you whether you objected to the
movement bearing your name. Suppose for one Moment that
it bore your none in this contexts suppose it was a
separate liberation movement. Do you object to the state
ment that you were inspired to take the line that you did
by personal or Party ambitions/ 	 A. Never, sir. This
fighting force was called the Legion of Gumbo and SlovWkSis.
Poland and never the Legions of General Prohala. If'soMe•
one called this fighting force after General Prohala it was • s
not his private opinion, it was nothing official.. eked
never ambitions that the fighting force should be willed
afteo mil name. My only wish was to fight.

MR SLADE, Did you think it would satiety any pereonal ambition
.	 to enlist in the ranks of the Polish Army? Perhaps that is

a matter of comment. That is all I desire to oak, MY Lord.g

	

MR JUSTICP OROOM*JOHNSCCI (To the witness) Would you just 	 i
tell me this, The statement in this 4ocument IS "Rthankovy...
sties a prehalovatina shasla v Polaku", IUD* you follow.:
me as nearly as I can get it. Do you object to the 	 'll
expression "sting" following your name?	 A. Yes, my Lore

Q I do not know that it really *attire a groat deal, but I
would like to have your opinion about it. What dos the

had the support
on I found out

Dr Blavik as the
the let Septam-

T

1	 A. I
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MN L. PRCHALAI

use of your name with that addition of "atlas! after it
convey to your mind? A. Only what is harmful and bad.

In other words h. Evil..\ •

(The witnesd<thdrew)..

,-Pti SLADE' That is my case, my Lord.

SERJEAUT SULLIVAY1 I have to submit first on behalf of the
Defendants that this action, on the Plaintiff's own evidence,

. mot be dismissed. Yirst, before I get to the plea of fair
comment, I most respectfully submit there 1 no libel hero,
You have not got the whole article but you have sufficient
before you	

lat JUSTICE CROOM.JOHNSON' Which branch of the problem that I
have to face are you submitting that upon at the moment,
the capacity of the words to be defamatory or their being
defamatory in fact?

SESJEANT SULLIVAN' The capacity of the words to be defamatory
in this context, Thoy are not capable of a defamatory
marlins. Alternatively, if capable of a defamatory meaning,

• they are defamatory of the Plaintiff in his personal capa-
city. The words complained of, apart from the context,
are the words that your Lordship is able to pronounce and I

• am not. As the somewhat eloquent and relevationary first
witness said, all that they mean is Eahanekism or Prohalaism
and they ere stated In the context. "Kahanek and Prohala .
nuisances" is how they have translated it. .t certainly
does not mean nuisances. The one word that the eloquent
and holy gentleman did not introduce into his definition of
what they meant was that' they were significantly absent.
If you take "rahaneklem and Prohalaism died off in Poland
with the Bock regime", all that means is Eahanekiem was the
scheme and theory propounded by Kahanek and Prohalaiam was
the movement and scheme and policy advocated by General
Prchala, vie have stated that they died off in Poland with
the Beck regime before they grew into a real schism.

r•

MR JUSTICE CROOM-JORESONI would you apply your mind to the
last three or four words of that sentence, Are you sub-
mitting that to accuse a man of a schismatic, tendency is
necessarily incapable of a defamatory meaning, because I
think those words as at present advised are a suggestion
that those two movements were schismatic- in tendency but
that they died off before they grew into a real schism,
that is to say, before they had done their work. Do you
say that to nay that of a General in the Army is incapable
of a defamatory moaning?

BERJEANT StIL/VANI Yea, my Lord. You may have perceived
-although the General inthe Army strenuously dieclaise
acquaintance with politics, nevertheless doss manifest pelt.
31oal views quite openly. wo say of any man that his pelt.
tical views are schismatic with regard to the Party to which
he belongs or the Movement to which he belongs la not
defamatory of that man, If his opinions ars at variance
with his Party, so far from being defamatory if he expressos
them IS he fails to express them and hypocritically accepts
the doctrines in his Party in which he does not believe
rather than separate himself and his followers by proclaim.
ing their difference • that is not defamatory, The word
schism I am afraid has been appropriated by the Theo1060

Lane as having a very dreadful, meaning in their law, but

"i1
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"sehismn- in politics is the oommencement of every movement.
To have a schismatic political tendency, serer from being
defamatory I should say is some sort of a compliment in days
where machine-made politicians are all supposed to be exact-
ly in conformity with the same stamp.

MR JUSTICE CROON-JOHNSON' One difficulty I feel about that is.
. this, following your argument.	 I have not heard of any
Party that I might call the Prehala Party at all. As tar
as I have heard up to now, there was only one person who
was engaged in this effort, and that was the Plaintiff. If
it had said Liberalism might have a particular tendency and

-then a particular Liberal comes forward and says "I an a
Liberal" and that is what I an saying about him, I could
understand it. But I have not heard that there is any
Party of Prchalaiem, except that the writer of this article
refers to something which he calls -- I am going to take
the literary gentleman's evidence about that - Probalsiem.

SERJEART SULLIVAN, Yes, my Lord, I agree that is the meaning
of it. ev argument does not depend on the Party. It is
all the stronger if it is a man who to certainly starting
what must be a political apt, namely, the organisation of
the citizens of one country within the boundaries of another
country. That is Prohnlaiem. The fact that it is only

. a one man show emphasises the fact that Prabalaism is the
'Proper designation. When kr Joggles MO', starts a new
Movement, the Party from whom he has deserted says, "This
is not any great new doctrine of any kind started by any
man of intellectual opinion, it is sere Jugginism, it is
his own particular form. That is the meaning of "Ism",
that it is the fad of the particular man end his IMMOditte
Offteageo

•

kit JUST= CROCRWOROSONI Assume that is right. Supposing •
the individual who wan addressing the gentleman whom you
have tailed Mr JuSgine goes on to ascribe personal motives
to hir, what then/

UMW =DIVAS, I am only dealing with the first part
first, the meaning of Probalaism. Probalaiem MOMs that
this was not a Liberation Movement as the General says it
was. xe said "1 started the first Liberation Movement",
those were his words.

a
YA JUSTICE OROOM.JOHNSONI The suggestion in this article

quite plainly is that there was a Liberation Movement and 	 •
a nuttier of individuals, we will not give 'them name' owe
of thme in Poland, some 	 them in Paris and someofethem
in Greet Britain, attempted to create a separate Liberation
Movemeet, That Must mean otter the first one bad started
becaus, they are all described ea falling on the unity of
the emend Liberation Movement, which to what I till tall
for the moment Dram& Movelent, Therefore, it is
svggeatel that all those Movements were posterior in time
to the ovation of what I will tall the Bones Movement.
That to the meaning of the article, in it lot? Be any be
right oi wrong. It is nothing to do with me whether he is
or not.

=WANT 8111•VANI The Plats= &bitted Dr Wee, although
be says vithout any authority except that of the Ambassador
in Americo, purported to sot. Re was the person who did

Lurie= act "Int: 
leader 01' 	 We 

row er". .
State, recognised by this country.
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MR JUSTICE CROOM-JOHNSON: I was wondering what authority
Garibaldi had when he started first.

SERJEANT SULLIVAN: MY submission is that to call the action
of the Plaintiff in Poland, which as you nee was at logger-
heads with Dr Bones from the start, Prchalaism is not
defamatory. You are not saying that it is a Movement of
any dishonest kind. A schism among the Theologians is
always entirely attributed to the machinations of an evil
spirit, but in politics at all event:: some people can
imagine the schism iv, created by the conscientious convic-
tions of a person who leaves his Party and starts a campaign

* on his own. The schism of Mr Joseph Chamberlain is one
that we all remember, his second schism. But to say of a
man that he has the tendency in politics to assert his own
personal opinions and lead a Movement in accordance with
them -- that is a schism in the Party to which he belongs

• but it is not personally defamatory of him.	 To call it
by his name Smithism or Jonesism is no doubt to belittle
the Movement and to be derogatory of the Hove:lent that is
being conducted as being aomething that is not worthy of
notice. But it ia no reflection on the peraonal character
of the man who leaves the Party to start the Wen:event.
Therefore, I say that to accuse a person of conduct which
*might have developed into a schism of the Movement if it had
been persisted in does not say that he created a schism but
that ..ahare!..iam and Prohalaiam died off in Poland with the
Beck regime. The quarrel of the Czechoslovak Government
was always with Beck, who wanted to establish an independent
State at the far side under the Slovaks with MIA protection
of Poland and thus put the Omaha between two itrea, 3at
it died off with the Beak regime before it could grow into
a real schism, that is to say, the allegation is that
Prohalaiam had a tendency to develop into a schism but,
before it developed into a schism, with the fall of Beck it
died out. What is defamatory in that, because defamation
does not mean any disapproval of a person's Political schemes
or social Schemes or his acientifio theories, It mast MOM
defamation of his personal character and I say that to

* attribute to the action of a win, which was political action
whether be chooses to face it or not -- he admits that he
was taking an action which was a political action. You
cannot go into a strange country and start organising
individual refugees or those in a strange country, maintain.,
ing relations with the Goverment of that country on your
own for the purpose of doing it. That is political action.
To say of that action that it fortunately died out before it
Woos a schism Is not capable of being libellous and not
capable of conveying personal defamation of personal charac-
ter, because the Court of Appeal hae recently affirmed that,
Libel is defamation of the personal character of an individ-
ual, and criticism of a body or a Party or a policy in these
days, a personal attack on an individual in respect of his
own character, cannot be made the subject of an action for
libel, There bad been a rival Liberation Movement led by

• Ur Hodza, It says in Paris there were difficulties far
more serious than the attempts to create a separate Libera..
tion Vovement in Poland. There certainly was an attempt
to create a separate Liberation Movement in Poland.

UR JUSTICE CROONJOHNSONI Do not assume upon the evidence to
which I have listened that I find that proved at present.
There was an attempt to create a body of troops who were to
sot with the Pdtish Army in opposing the Germans,

32.
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SERJEANT SULLIVAN: As a Liberation Movement.

MR JUSTICE CROM-JOHNSOY: That that is a separate Liberation
Movement or part of a larger one I have got nothing on
Match i can put my fingers.

qERJEAU: SULLIVAN; But that it was a Liberation Movement was
declared by the ?laintiff himself.

JUSTIa CROW-JOIT,SON: Cortainl". The word "separatenis
the word that I am calling attention to, a pitiful attempt
to create a separate Liberation govement. The writer is
saying that this was something antagonistic, apparently, to
a Liberation Movement already in exirtence. Up to the
moment I am pointing out I know of no Liberation Movement
which came first at the time when the Plaintiff went into
Poland in hay 1939,

SERJEANT SULLIVAN: Well, he admitted that on the invasion of
Prague, which was the 15th March, 1939, be knew of the
activities of Dr Bones in protest.

Mk JUSTICE MOM-JOHNSON . I do not thin% be did.

SWUM SULLIVAN I have that, my Lord, and / thought he
admitted it.

MR JUSTICE CROOM-JOHNSON Be told me over and over again about
that. Be said "I did not know that Bones had put himself
at the head of any orlanisation. Bones left on the 5th
October, 1939. Re resigned his Presidency. He left his
country in desperation", and then this mornin g be told ho
that he went to the United Statee.

SERJBANT XILLIVAKs I an not concerned with time, my Lord.

YR JUST ICF CROOM.JOHNSOEs Time map be of importance bemuse
it is not until the 31st August, 1939, according to this
evidenoe, that Dr Slavik produces a letter from Dr Renee,
who Slavi:c said had been elected.

SERJEUT SULGIVAP8 Yes, my Lord.

UR JUSTICE MOM-JOHNSON: Of the Liberation Movement by ell
the Ambassadors and he gave him an ultimatum to sign in
support of it, That is the 31st August, that is the day
before the March into Poland.

—.SWUM SULLIVAN: Yes, my Lord, May I respeetfully say
that this matter of time does not bear anti* argument that

to put forward and I have already quoted....

0 JUSTICE CROOM-JOENSOY; I hesitate to interrupt you, bat to
my mind the question ot tame may be all.important at to
*lather this was an attempt to create a separate Liberation
Movement when there was already in existence a Liberation
Movement which the writer calls the almond Liberation Move, •

•	 meat. .	 -

BERJSANT SULLIVAN hay I remind your Lordship of this on the .
question of time. I could have put much earlier entries
to bin, but in June, long before the maroh into Poland,
things had come to such a bead between the Plaintiff and
the Hones organisation that be had made up his mind that if
Pews would not approve of his conduct and the policy of the
Poles he would resign and take a Commission. My friend
said he wOuld enter the ranks, but to take a Commission was



C A

what te contemplated in the Polish Army. That waa in Awe,
and that was, as you see, the culmination. He admitted
that he found that the Banes people, whoever they were --
they called themseivee a Liberation Movement and they axe
now an Allied Government -- were recognised as the represen-
tatives of Czechoslovt*.ia 	 the British Government very
early after the declaration of war. They have been since
recognise4 as being a Constitutional Government of Czeoho-
slovakia. They are an Allied Government now. So you see_
by June the quarrel between Beres and the Plaintiff had
reached the point at *tioh the Plaintiff said "I will throw •
up my relations with Czechoslovaltia if they do not recognise:
my-viork nor the wish of Poland. If London recognises
neither my work nor the wish of Polard, I shall resign and
join the Polish Arse. -

ER JUSTICB CADOP-JOHNSOM The copy provided for me says "should
London not acknowledge neither effort". 	 I suppose that
means neither my effort nor the wishes of Poland. I shall
resign and join the Polish Arm.

SERJEAMT SULLIVANs There is obviously a slight difference in
translation.

--3

MR JUSTICE CROOM-JOHNSONs It is the some sort of thing.

SWEAR SULLIVAN; It is the some thing but on the question of
• time yoil see that is June and not ftptember, So in June.

there was, as you see, at all events, a difference of two
Parties or two persons, it you choose to take it as persons.
Haab 1148 claiming a leadership, but whether right or wrong
ow that I an on the question of personal defamation, It
does not matter for my argument. Time is of no importance
to my argument on the meaning of the words, for the meaning
of the words does not become personal defamation whether he
commenced a Movement without reference to any other or
whether he commenced a Movement before another or after ono-
tber with knowledge of another or with no knowledge of the
other, It does not affect a statement that that Movement .
had a tendency to grow into a schism instead of being truly
collaborative. That is all that has been said up to that
point. That is a matter of opinion and is not a matter of
personal defamation.

Now I want to go on. "In Great Britain a mall group
of unsatisfied individuals attempted to impise themselves, .
trying to exploit the more or leas justified grievances
to get hold of the leadership in the time when • according
to their opiniOn - the democratic world drifted definitely
to the extreme left. .However, this group didn't grow into
an opposition and behaves reasonably . and submits itself to
the leadership of our liberation movement, The COMMUftet8
who were temporarily in opposition, are today the noisiest
champions of the national unity. An ineffiolent attempt to
create a sort of a 'Slovak separatism' in the second libera-
tion movement, badly miscarried already in France and in
Great Britain nothing similar could have had any chance, It
is characteristic" -- now those are the words complained of

"that all these shadows, which fell on the unity of our
second liberation movement didn't leave any lasting traces
and were always of an absolutely different substance,
emanating from different groups and tendencies. This provos
•tbat they were too obviously grounded in personal or party

ambitions or that their objective cause wag swept away by •
timely reforms in our organisation". I do most reepeetrufly

•■■•



Submit that none of that passage is capible of being
defamatory.	 The statement is that none of these Movements'
grew into a Schism and produced any lasting impression.
They were shadows that clouded the Movement for a while and
never materialised into anything worse because they really
were grounded in personal or party ambitions or their
objective cause. 	 Higher up it had said there were some
grievances and then it says "their objective cause was •
swept away by timely reforms". Now take personal or party
ambitions. There is nothing defamatory in stating that
man has ambitions. 	 There is nothing defamatory in stating
that when he starts a movement or organisation or an action
of any kind he has personal ambiticale with regard to the
leadership of it and the enlargement of it so that this
movement will bring him farm and prominenue in public life.
There is nclthing defamatory in that personal ambition ie
not a vice. The lack of it may often be a contemptible
thing. A man who has not at least the ambition to put
his talenta to the best use does not enhance himself by
failing to be stimulated by ambition if be has the oppor-
tunity of Service.	 There is nothing degrading in ambition.
Everyone has some personal ambition or elee he has no object
in life. Put to say that a movement of any kind was
grounded it personal or party ambitions is not in any 801180
a defamation of the personal character of the parson who has
organised that movement, Every men who organisea a move-
merit and wishes to control and lead it has the personal
ambition of controlling and leading that movement. It is
a perfectly honourable and proper thing. How many persona
in the Legislature have ambition° to distinguish themselves
in order that they may eventually find themselves in the
Cabinet and the Government of their own oovetry. Is there
.anything dishonourable about ambition? - if there is, I fail
to see it. Without ambition where would the public service
of this country find itself? Personal ambition to dis-
tinguish oneself is one of the incentives of public service
in every walk of life. There is nothing defamatory about
it and as for party ambitions, every, party has ambitions,
and the object of every party is to realise its ambitions
as the object of every man is to realise his ambition in
life. Then it says, "The whole of our movement, although
it had .encountered many difficulties and made many mistekee
as a unit presented itself in a very healthy ]4ght, because
it overcame 411 its internal crises". There is no personal
Attack on the personal character of any individual from
beginning to end in that.

Now, my Lord, my second argument is that if that were
Sapable of being defamatory in the abstract it is not
defamatory of the Plaintiff, reading the whole article
together.

MR SLADE! I am 0OrrY to intervene but I do not quite know
whether this is a submission of law, because we are now
coming to the question of fact: My friend has not yet
told your Lordship whether he is calling any evidence.

SERJEANT SULL/VANt I am making a eubmission of law.

MR SLADES It cannot be a Submission of law.

MR JUSTICE OROOM•JOHNSON: As I understand, the submission it
law ie that there is no evidence upon Which I can find the •
second arm which is whether the words are defamatory intact
of the Plaintiff.
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. :14R SLADE: The question whether the words are capable of a
defamatory meaning with which the learned Serjeant has just
dealt I agree Is a question of law. The question whether
the words are defamatory must be a question of fact.

MR JUSTICE CROON-JOHNSON: That is quite right, but that does
not preclude the learned Serjeant from submitting that
there is no evidence on behalf of the Plaintiff upon which
I can find that they are defamatory in fact.	 It leaves
open, of course, the third question: assuming that they are
'capable of a defamatory meaning, assuming that there is evi-
dence upon which I can find that they are defamatory in fact,
are they defamatory 1n fact? Upon that, as you rightly
point out it seems to me that I may then have to refer to
Carpenters case. We have not reached that stage yet.

!CR SLADE; It is a matter, of course, entirely for your
' Lordship, but se vow Lordship is sitting without a jury

I thought the practice nowadays was not to listen to submis-
sions at this stage unless the other party intimated that he
was not going to call evidence.

, .MR JUSTICE CROOM-JOHNSON: There is nothing to prevent
listening to a submission that there le no evidence.
What the importance of it may be I cannot way.

SERJEANT SULLIVAN; May I say at once I am not going to call'
evidence.

MR JUSTICE. CROON-JOHNSON: That olearm the deck, so to speak.

MR SLADE; So that I may not have interrupted in vain, may I
assist my friend by saying that I do not dispute that as a
matter of law the matters commented on here are matters of
public interest.

MR JUSTICE Cr.00E-JORNSON; I had better not anticipate what
going to be said about that. When we get there I may want
to ask a question,

SERJEANT SULLIVAN: That I have said on the first part of the
meaning of the words contains the nucleus of the argument
on the second and third and I know that anything I could
elaborate will be pro sent to your Lordship' e mind, Your
Lordehip l o mind will turn it over in the same way as mine

1 wäuld. Your Lordship has indioated there are two other
questions, but they are really developments of what I have
said on the first.

Now I come to the third question s old I submit that
there is nothing In this article which exceeds what a
reasonable man might write about the Plaintiff and his
movement. If in tact it is not only capable of being
defamatory but in fact is defamatory and is defamatory of
the Plaintiff	 all these are prerequisites before you
rem* the plea of fair comment.

' MR JUSTICE •CROOli•JOHNSON: Then the first step that one has
to look at on this plea is whether the writer is coamentim5
OD facts, That I should like to know is which part of
this article or of. these words de you say are proved facto.
upOn which the writer Is entitled to comment, because be
cannot set up things which are not !acts and then comment
upon those.

me
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SERJEANT SULLIVAN: I think I 'have appreciated - that point,
my Lord.

NR JUSTICE CROON-JOHNONi I am not sure you have.
-

SERJEANT SULLIVAN: I want to see what are the facts stated
and we will take the whole paragraph. We are used to
pay a greater attention to the so-called internal matters
or our Liberation Noverent", and so forth. Then it deals
with critics of the Army, critics of the Air Force, and

• then there were the statements: "Thern were several attempts
to create a schism and to set up an opposition within our
liberation movement". That does not refer to the Plaintiff,

.but that was true as you have heard.	 It went so far as to
have an opposition orcanisation of Dr Hodes set up in Paris.

MR JUSTICE MOM-JOHNSON; Yes. 	 I want to be rather careful
about this. It says: "There were several attempts to create
a schism"	 Do you agree or do you not agree that from that
moment the writer is proceeding to set out a list of attempts
to create a schism?

8BRJRANT SULLIVAN: No, my Lord, I do not agree. Ho Bart
"There were several - attempts to create a schism and to set
up an opptuition within our liberation movement', He says;
"In two cases, in Poland and in Prance, all the complications
'ere solved for us by the events themselves, as the Presi-
dent foresaw from the very beginning, with certainty and
patience". Re says that Xahanskiam and Preis:141am died
off in Poland with the Bechregime before they could grow 	 '
into a real schism".	 •

MR JUSTICE CMCOM.JOHNSONI Now would you atop there. Is he
not Ming, therefore, that the Xthanek and Prehala things,
to use a neutral expression, were attempts to create a
schism which fortunately died off before they grew into a
real schism?

SERJRANT SULLIVAN: Very well, my Lord, I will accept that.

MR JUSTICE MOM-JOHNSON: Is be not therefore ascribing sumo,
thing to the party or run-away-1am, it I may use the
expression we heard yesterday? The party was attempting
to create a schism but they did not succeed, Is that a
far too loose rendering?

SERUM SULLIVAN: Well, my Lord, take it so. I am quite
willing to take that view of it for the purposes of m7
argument. The facts with regard to that are that certainly
after the Beck organisation bed intervened as being the

' real official organisation there was a persistence in
Poland, perfectly honest, perfectly chivalrous • a perste. •
tem in a course of conduct Which might, however mistakenly,
be thought to be persistence in a course of conduct Whit&
would create divergence in the liberation movement, Acoor-
dingly, inatend of one movement, you certainly had in Poland
for a (line, certainly from June onwards, the aeaertiOn of

" what the writer of the article calls the liberation move.
sent and a movement which was an attempt to do something
that would mate an opposition or a notion inconsistent
with the ideas or what the writer calls the second libel's,.
tion movement. That IS a perfeotly :air criticism of what
is proved te have been LahaneRiem and Prohslaiem in Poled,
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_ Whoever commenced first, there was, no.doubt at
all on the Plaintiff's evidence that by the month of June
be was being asked to submit himself to unconditional
obedience to the Benesparty as being the real authority
of the Liberation Movement; and there can be no doubt at
all that the Plaintiff resented the authority of that body,
resented the claim of unconditional obedience, and went so
far as to say that if that was persisted in, and London,
from whence the Committee was now operatin: .; would not
acknowledge the wor l; and comply with the wishes of Poland
he would cut loose from Czechoslovakia altogether and become
a Polish Officer. It is a perfectly clear comment on that
that that attitude and conduct of the Plaintiff vas in
fact an attempt to create a separate Liberation Movement,
and in fact an attempt to create a schism in the eecond
Liberation Movement under Dr. Bones.

Now consider the point of view of the writer of
this article 'AA is in favour of Dr. Bones , Movement. You.:
have heard the attitude of Colonel Beck. You have seen
I thought that the Plaintiff mi5ht not have perceived it
himself, the position, into Which be was manoeuvred in
Poland. He went to Poland to organise, I understand, a
Czechoslovak Legion to fight against the Germans if the
Germans invaded Poland, but be persisted in his Movement in
spite of the protest of Dr. Bones conveyed to him when that
Movement was being used at all events by Colonel 300 ,!, into
drawine the distinction that Beck had always nought, to
draw between the two States, the Slovak State and the
Czech State; and accordingly, when you come to look at
the Proclamation of the Polish government, accepted by the
Plaintiff, be was willing to work with them according to
their wishes, as his own Memorandum shows; there is no
appeal to Czechoslovakian soldiere, there is a soptrata
appeal to Czech soldiers and Slovak soldiers. 	 •

MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON; 3eparate in this sense, that they
• are individually refftrred to in the document, but not as
• States they are referred to as Nations. •

SENJEANT SULLIVAN: Yes.

MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON* I thought there was a distinction
between them. When Vr Bones 'rote his book "The Two
Nations" he was not thinking of the two States in Rngland,
he was thinking of two Nations 115 England, the rich and
the poor.

=MAST SULLIVAN; I am afraid I have not conveyed what my
point is to your Lordship.

MR JUSTICE CROOK JOHNSON; That I am pointing out is that
according to the translation Which I have there is no
reference in these documents to a Slovak State; there is
a reference to a Slovak Nation, which May be quite a
different thins,

SERJEANT SULLIVAN;' It may be quite a different thing, but
what I want to point out in this; there le no reference
by Poland to a Czechoslovak existence et all. It was not
to be a Legion of Slovaks and a Legion of Czechs. The
Liberation Movement was a Liberation Movement for
Czechoslovaks.; and Colonel Beck is taking advantage --
I thought at first that the Plaintiff might have been
unaware of it -- he was taking advantage of this Movement
to support his own views of the separation of Sloveke and
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Czechs. The General is now, as he told you in answer to his
Counsel, a General of the Czechoelovak Army. There is no
refereece to Czechoslovaks by the Poles, and while Colonel .
Beck was in office there never would be. Beck wanted two
separate Btatse and the General used the word -- he said
the separate Slnvak State had been acknowledged by a
number of Powers, ad he accepted that. There was not a
separate Stcte, and the Liberation Movement is not a
Liberation movement of two separate 3tates; the Government
which is now functioning in London is the Czechoslovak
Government. If the General is their General - he says he .
is a General in the Czechoslovak Army, it is not by accident
that Colonel Beck is appealing to a Czech soldier and a
Slovak soldier; there was no Czech Army, there was no
Slovak Army in contemplation of the Liberation Novenmnt.
There vas to be a Czechoslovak Army, and Beck would have
seen to that; and that is the meaning, I respectfully
submit, of the Plaintiff's reference to resigning and becom-
ing a Polish Officer. What was he to resign? HS was to
resign his CommiSsion as a Czechoslovak Officer and become
a Polish officer, and ee a Polish Officer he would be free
to accept the Polish view of the separation of the Slovak
State which, as he said, had been acknowledged by a number
Of Powers, namely Poland and Germany, and he accepted that,
Accepting that condition was entirely at variance with the
whole spirit of the Czechoslovak Rational Liberstion
movement.

Accordingly I most respeetfully submit that this
criticism, if it was defamatory ..- if you can find in it
some reference to the personal character and p‘.sonal .
conduct of the Plaintiff, is not outside the beumle which,
on the proved facts of this case, as specified in the
article .. this statement of fact turned out to be true.
This Movement of the Plaintiff in Poland was a Movement
which in fact accepted the separation of the Slovak State
was a Nevemeet in which the Slovak party ambitions might
be a success, The separatist party might be . assisted by
this Movement of the Plaintiff; that is to say, it win a .'
'Covenant which, whether be knew it or not, was in accordance
with the Party ambition of the Separatists. That it was a
Moven:mat in which his own personal ambitions were to be
realised is perfectly plain, and he confesses -- and it is
not in the smallest degree a reflection upon him that be
confesaes it •. it was his Movement, it was his desire, that
be should be left in control, of the Movement; if he could
not control it as a Czechoslovak he was willing to becOme
a Pole and control it there, It was his Movement, it wail
his ambition, that he should lead Czechs and Slovaks
ageinet the Germans when the day cams; strictly honourable,
perfectly chivalrous and perfectly right from his point of
view, but quite inconsistent with being a Czechoelovek,
quite inconsistent with being under the command of any
authority which would speak for the Ozechoelovakian
Republic, and, therefore, if that was his conscientious
View, that that was better In the long run for his country,
than to comply with the views of Dr. Bones, very well;
let us respect the opinion of a man who is willing to
surrender his position in the high command of his own
country because be thinks in the long :un he will serve
them better under a foreign flag. There is no personal
reflection in that,but It le a perfectly fair criticism of
his persisting in such conduct that it should be said it
came to an end, he made his peace with the Czechoslovak
Government, an 'It became. They were first recognised as -
the Czechoslovak representative body, and are now the
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Czechoslovak Government, an Allied Government and he
-remained their.Officer.

' UR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON: I suppose I can take judicial
notice of the fact that the Czechoslovak CoMmittee or
Government in London ie

,SERJEANT SULLIVAN; An Allied State,
•

YR JUSTICE GROOM JOHNSON: Is recognised by the British	 •
Government. Can 1 take judicial notice of the date as from
which that operated?

SERJEANT SUILIVAlit If you wish I will call a_.,1,0088.
NB JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON;

about it.

SERJRANT SULLIVAN; It came in two stages.

Xi JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON: You can wee at the Bar ea to
when it was.

SERJEANT SULLIVAN: It came in two stages: first, the recogni-
tion of the National Committee as being the body which could
speak or behalf of Czechoslovakia.

MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON; It is sufficient for m7 purpose to
know was that after the outbreak of the war between the
British Commonwealth and German'?

• SERJEART SULLIVLJ; ith yes.

YR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON; That is sufficient for nv
purpose. That i.e the first stage,

8FRJEA1'T SULLIVAN; That was the first stage o: recognition.

la JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON: That is right. I wilt call that,
for convenience, the recognition of Dr. Bones' Committee;
everybody understands what I mean by that,

SERJRANT SULLIVAN: I can give you the date of that.

MR JUSTICE CROOK JOHNSON: The exact date does not matter so
long as it was after the outbreak of the war.

NR SLADE; I opened that the provisional Government, not the
National Committee, was the 24th July 1940.

• JUSTICE CROOb JOHNSON: That is the provisional Government.

NR 411,401; Yes; I do not know that I can say more except
that it was some time after the war.

MUM •ULLIVANI In rovember 1939 they wore recognised as
a representative of the State; and thor they wore reco3-
nised as the provis i onal Government end are an Allied
Government at the pro:ent moment.

:Phat / was presenting to your Lordship was that
for the purpoae of fair comment your Lordship has lot, to
a large a%tent, to put yourself in the poalbion of the
writer and see what the circumstance!: are for the purpose
of seeing what deduction a reasonable pereon might draw
from those filets.

No, you need not call evidence,

I an emphasizing these things	 I am
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not here on behalf Of the OzecheeloVik Golternment, two ti
private individuals are sued. The Renee who is the
Defendant is a nephew of the President of the Czechoslovak
Republic. The actual Defendant, who is in an official
position which keeps him in America, is not here. He was .
the writer of the article, but you can see it i9 a defence •
of the Czechosloval: Government, but if they sued the
President, of course, they could not proceed in this Court,
he is, in the contemplation o. law, the head of an Indepen-
dent state, and they could not 8VA him in this Court.

JUSTICE CROGY, JOHNSORt If the thing you have to show haa
been proved, the fact must surely be this -- I an not
seeking to set aside your argument, which I shall have to
consider later; this reflects upon this particular
Plaintiff -- I put that on one aide for a moment -- what
went on in Poland was an attempt to create a schiem. Thai
is one fact.

SMOAK SULLIVAN: Yes.

MR JUSTICE CROOM JORNSOD: That is not opinion; and the other
feet is that that attempt was too obviously groundod in
personal or party ambition. Never mind whose or whether an

-individual l s or anybodys. Those two facts have to he
proved as facts. Where do you say there is any evidence
that what I have heard about the attempt to create a
Foreign Legion in Poland vas done as part of an attempt to
create a schism.

SERJBANT SULLIVAN: The creation of a schism, once you have an
• act done or persisted in, is at variance with the policy of

the National Committee by a person purporting to act for •
• the Baum code and objects as the Committee, and the attempt

to persist in that policy by a person who is opposed to the
Committee is an attempt to create a schism,

ER JUSTICE CROCE JORDON' That ie all very well, you Inow,
• but it may have that result. If it succeeds, it may have
. that result, but it does not follow that because somebody

takes a differing view of policy end seeks to get his
policy adopted, that his intention is to create a adhism.
He may be trying to preach in order to convert the other
side.

SERUM SULLIVAN: That is what every schismatist does.

MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON: And a tot of perfectly good people
who are not schismatists, aml that seems to be a lineation
of fact. The writer seems to am to be saying that these
people intended, and were attempting to °Mate a schism,
It may be they were not attempting to do anything of the

• sort, but thought that was the best way of getting unity.
I do not know.

10414SAMT SULLIVAN; Several attempts to create a schlem and to
Set up on opposition within owe Liberation Movement.

MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON: Certainly,

8ERJBANT SULLIVAN: Remember, my Lord, that the statement of
fact May be a matter of fair comment. A statement of fact
can be smatter of fair comment even if that statement of
feet (I =referring to the Judgment of . Dord Justice Greer
in Norms against 'line Express) even if that statement
of	 fact	 is	 a	 statement	 that
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the oonduet of a person is fraudulent, the Lord Justice
in his Judgment, said that the libel did mean that the
conduct of the Plaintiff wee fraudulent ----

JUSTICE CROOK JOHNSON: I can follow that quite well;
and supposing the statement of fact in that case had been:
"Ur So and so was attemtping to commit a fraud" would you

. say that was opinion?

SERJHANT SULLIVAN; That is exactly what the Lord Justice
said on the facts might be a fair comment. air comment is
not confined to opinion. I most respectfully submit that
is a fallacy. You may deduce a fact as fair comment, mod.
accordingly a person is presumed to intend that which is
the natural oonsequence of his action, and taking your
Lordship's translation of it fully, and accepting it this
gentleman, if he was doing a thing which, if persisted in
.would cause a real cleavage in the ranks	 it be was
poepared to persist in it and give up his National Commission
and take a foreign Commies ion in order to persist in it --
it the Movement that he sets his heart on was in fact of a
•chiematic tendency_-- I am afraid we are too much impressed
by the word "schimm" -- if it had that tendency, then be
must intend, in his attempt to carry it out to attempt
the natural consequence of his acts. If the Poles
separated the refugees into separate units, Slovaks and
Czechs, aoknowledging the Slovak unit an being the
citizens of one State ----

-MR JUST/01 CROOK JOHNSON; That is going back again to what.
I pointed out to you just now, There is no document before
mm which indicates that there was any attempt by the

• Plaintiff or anybody connected with him, to acknowledge
Slovaks as members of a separate State. A man may be a
member of a Nation end nevertheless not be a member of a
separate State. England and wales It one of the best
illustrations Of that which / know of. I should be very
sorry to think that by accepting some of my Welsh ancestry
Imes setting up O State in Wales.

SURJEART SULLIVAN: The Plaintiff himself in terms told ue
when I pressed him about this, that a number of Poles himi
acknowledged Slovak as a separate State 	 had "recognised",
was the word he used, the Slovak as a separate State. May'
I remind your Lordship that when I put to him: Did you
recognise it as a separate State, your Lordship said that
the word "recognise" with regard to a private individual
would not be correot: and you put it to him: What is meant
Its Did you accept that? And his answer want Yes, I
did accept it dm facto.

UR MTN?, CROOM JOHNSOY: Yes, I have that.

SERJRANT SULLIVAN; So you see, my Lord, that a Osechoelovak
General should be giving any assent of any kind to the
splitting up of his country politically 	 that he should
give any assent or acceptance to that, was absolutely
inconsistent with a Movement for the restoration of the
Czechoslovak Republic, so, m7 Lord, it it not a difference
between Nations and States, it was, in truth, assent to
the Polish and German recognition of the /novel:separate
State, not Nation, but State, In view of that, Wf Lord,
U he was determined to go on with a Movement which Mos
based -- based and had to be based -- upon the acceptance
of that fast, if be was going to continue his collaboration
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with the Poles, who had recognised the separato Slovak
State, the tendency of any official of the Czechoslovak
Government to colle.',nrate on that basis with anybody, was
an attempt to sot up a Wwement that would have resulted in
a achism and obviously had the tendency to promote the 	 •
separatist al;itation on behalf' of a Slovak State.

it all events, all I have to say is that it woe
not outside the function of a person writing about it to
assert it in that for:A. I most respectfully submit that
was true. Be. 	 may not have intended, and he may not have
had it present to his min,4, hut he must be presumed in law.
to intone it if the natural consequence of his action
would be the promotlou of the SoparatIst State and the
division of Czechoslovaia into two different nnthorities.
He must be presumed to intend it. His attention is celled
to the fact of the oppsition of the National r:orritteo to
it and he sayO he will co on with it, and if neoesnarv,
he will *ease to be a Czechoslovak General.	 I most
respectfully submit that that statement, if you take it as
a statement of fact, Is true, and my submission is that 	 -
as a statement of fact it is a deduction, and a very proper
deduction, from the policy of 1.:anamekism and Prohalaiam.
When you read the wholes thing, what is said is: There are
attempts to create a schiam and set up opposition: in two
cases all complications were solved by the events, and
they died off with the lieck Regime. This complication
died off with the Bee" 3e3ime before it had grown into a
real schism; but if this gentleman had resigned and said,
"I am not a Czechoslovak any longer, I will become a Polish
Officer', when he became a Polish Officer he must fall in
with the directions of the Polish politicians'who are in
orrice, He has to take his ideas from Colonel Beck, Re
would have created a schism, Here Was a distingulehed
General of the Czechoslovak Army assenting to Sechls
policy, be was under Seek'', command; where would the
National Liberation Posenent for the unity of the Csecho-
slovakian Republic be? Be may pot have seen the result of .
his action, but when he says "I will go on, and he is
attempting to create a schism, he is attempting to get his
refugee compatriots to consent to his point of view and
to repudiate the point of vies of the National Committee.
He is attemptin ef. to set up what would be a sehism it it
succeeded and tent on to the bitter end. Portunately it
did not and fortunate 1.'; this gentleman remains a Cseebo..
sloeak General in 4he Ize‘hoslovak Army. He is neither a
Cseeh nor a novel:. (Laughter). I do not understand that
laughter.

MR =ICE mom JOHNSON' If I hear any more laughter in
Court I will have the Court closed, This is a serioue
discuesioni it is not a theatre.

SERMANT SULLIVAN$ He is the 3eneral of an Army of the United
• .Nation, a eingle Nation, That would be absolutely
inconsistent with his carrying on an agitation in

- collaboration with those who had declared that there was
not a united Nation and that there was a separate State
*ruled by the Slova b-a, Accordingly, my Lord, I most
respectfully submit, once you look at this, not with a.
microscope or attempting to try and spell out something,
all that this says is what Was perfectly fair deduction
from the facts alluded to, namely, that this agitation Of
Kahanek and Prohila in Ooland was in truth an agitation :we
.the creation of a schism, or it would have grown into a
schism if it bad been persisted in and if the Book Regina
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had not come to an end. Your Lordship has that whole... 	 . •
paragraph in front of you, and I most respectfully submit-

: that the whole paragraph is a perfectly clear criticism of .
• the state of affairs that arose partly out of the conduct •	 '

of the Plaintiff who may have been animated and no doubt
- was animated, witt, the very beet of motives, but motive and: . i

intention are two totally different thinr.s, and the Motive
of the person who hills another to save that other from

• pain, does not exclude the intention of comittinc murder,	 !
however sincere that motive may be. There is no attaoh on
the Plaintiff's motives, there is no attack on the
Plaintiff's honour? there is a criticism of his political

, wisdom and his failure to collaborate and his reservations	 i
when he does purport to collaborate with the National
Committee, which I most respectfully submit are no personal
libel. Secondly, if true, it is contained in what is a
fair comment on the fact, on the policy that is there
called Prchalaism, or whatever it is; but at all events
it is fair comment on the fact of the Plaintiff's agitation

* and Movement by whatever name 7ou call it, whether a
' Liberation 1.4overent or a Probate 1.,overont. That is all	 •

I have to say, my Lord.

MA JUSTICE CROOU JOKIMOY: Let Dr. Dvornik come back into the
box again for a mcmmont.

MR SLADP; I understand, my Lord, that Dr. Dvornik is not
(( here.

MR JUSTICE GROOM JOHNSONt • Very well.

;
8PRJSART SULLIVAN* I havo a gentleman here as translate/vs and

U it will assist your Lordship I will call him.

MR AMU CROON JOHMON: It may raise save difficulty it
you call any evidence.

SERUM SULLIVAN1 It might, my Lord.

NR JUSTICE 000A JOHESON; I suppose I can call evidence
myself.

WA BLADE; You can call him to assist Your Lordship on any
matter.

MR JUSTICE OROOY JOHNSON; Perhaps that will be better.

'MR &WW1 I should not raise any objection at any time or
any criticism if that were done.

UNMET sumpans This gentleman is subject to the objection
that he is an Official Interpreter in the Ouch ?ortolan •
Ministry.

MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON; I do not think that what I Ma
going to ask him will Mies any difficulty.

POW AinLinn*

MR JUSUCH CROON JOHNSON; What are you?	 A. I am at *resent
a Translator in the esechoelovak Ministry of Foreign Affetis

Where do you live?	 A. I live in London.

Q Your address? A. 55, Osabridge Rouse, Kennington Park Rost
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• Mr SOURT AMIy,.
Examined.

Would you just take that article in your hand for a moment
and my blue pencil. Fold the other half of it, and you
will see the part we are discussing. There is a Czech word
there which is translated as "aohism". Would you put square
brackets round that word in that newspaper so that I may
know exactly which word it is that is translated as "schism".
A. I have done that, my Lord. (The witness had marked the
word " roskol").

ER JUSTICE mow MESON: Show that to learned Counsel first
of all. (The paper was handed to Counsel).

VS JUSTICE CROOF JoHYS0N • Is that a separate preposition?
A. Yes, my Lord, it is a separate preposition.

fhat is the meaning of it in Czech?	 A. Of the word.
,"roskol"?

Q '1611. A. I should say "schism" is a correct translation.

Q What do you understand by that as a Czech wordy A. Wall,
it means a difference in views or policy.

Q A split?	 A, Yea, a split,

It is sometimes described as a state of divided allegiance;
would you agree with that? 	 A. I would not call it •
state; I should say it is rather the action of bringing
about the difference.

The action of bringing about a divided allegiance. A. /Ws.

• NR JUSTICE CROOK JOHNSON: would either of you like to ask
this gentleman any question upon that?

SERJBART SULLIVAN; No, my Lord,.

NR BLADE; No, my Lord.

MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON; Thank you, Yr Auty,

Li BLADE, Serje ant Sullivan's first point is the point of
law that the words were incapable of a defamatory meaning.

NE JUSTICE C30011 JOHNSON' You need not trouble about that.

NR SLADE; The second point was, as I respectfully submit,
a question of fact; as to whether they were In fact
defamatory.

MR JUST/OE CROON 3OHNS0N: Of the Plaintiff.

MR BLADE; Of the Plaintiff. Of course the Plaintiff is
mentioned by name here; his nom is mentioned and I am
therefore unable to understand the Serjeant's reference to
personal libel.

MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON; Suppoaing that in an arttole
somebody who writes ib. says something which is like
G/adstoneism (I am going back a long way) would that have
enabled the late Mr. Gladstone to have brought a libel
action ?

MR BLADE; We, my Lord, not unless it was in relation to the

v activitiee Of Kr, Gladstone and was of a derogatory
character. The word "ism" may be used as in "spoonerism",
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which is quite colourless, or it may be "Hitlerism", which
• I should very strongly object to if it was applied to myself.

MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON: Take "Hitlerism"; I suppose we
most of us have in mind Hitler. 3upposing.somebody said
there had been a massacre of the people in a particular
locality and the wrier of the article said, "This is only
another example of Hitlerism", would that entitle our mnem7,
Adolf Hitler, to bring a libel action?

MALAN: Certainly.

MR JUSTICE CROOM JOHNSON: You seen to have no doubt about it,
but I csonfees I have a great deal of doubt about it. Of
couree you may be right in saying it depends upon what the
rest of the article says, but put simpliciter, as I put
it I should have thought there was a great difficulty.

MR SLADE: I do not want to appear unduly dogmatic, of course.
!: •
" MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON: I am inviting you to be.

MR SLADE: The word "ism" as a suffix to a proper name
depends entirely for its meaning upon the propensities which
the vend knows to be attached to the man bearing that
names Spoonerism because of Mr Spooner; _Hitlerism boause
of Hitler. It I use the word "Annanisalam" everyone would know,
probably what I meant, and it would be defamatory applied
to anyone, in my respectful submission. Now what is said
here	 and this is aleo_germane when I cone to the third
point may I take the "shadows" first of all: "It is
characteristic that all these shadows which fell on the
unit7" -- unity" -- "of our second Liberation Movement
were grounded in personal or party ambition", Now what
were the shadows which we know failed to reach the substance
only because they were nipped in the bud by the German
Oeoupation of those countries? What were the shadows
which were grounded in personal or party ambitions?
Two of them are specific. The first one . is that there
vas an attempt to create a schism, Firstly, that involves
two things: one, that there must be inexistence, at the
time of the attempt, an existing Liberation Movement.
You Cannot separate from something which does not exist,
and therefore the words "attempt to create s schism"
postulate that there shall be in existence what has been
called the second Liberation Movement (the first one being
in the Great War) lo set up an opposition within ovr
Liberation Movement 	 that is to say, again, it
postulates that there mmat be an existing Liberation
Movement or you could not attempt to set up an opposition
within it. The So-called Prohalalem started on the
94thaSth May 1939, and come to an end at least before
November 1.939 when, for the first time, our Government
gave recognition to the NatAnal Oomaitteel and there is
not a title of evidence, the learned Serjeant has given you
a lot of interesting reminiscences about Continental
countrieo,but where it can be found in the evidence before
your Lordship wee p my comprehension. Certainly there is
not a vestige of evidenee of the existence of any Liberation
Movement of any kind whatsoever at the time of the so-called
Frohalaism. It then described them as "pitiful attempts
to create a separate Liberation Movement" .. pitiful
attempts; and it then says that "they fell on the unity
of our second Liberation Movement". That must mean that
it was an attempt to create disunity; and again you sonnet
have 4 

unity of something which does not exist.
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Lastly it says, "What was his motive for
attempting to create disunity in a Movement which had as
its purpose the liberation of his own country"; and the

:-ms there is nothing wrong in ambition. ' Of
answer

Ser leant
iven 

says
self aggrandizement. My learned friend

the 
.course here is nothing wrong in ambition, ambition is a
highly attractive and necessary quality, but when I subor-
dinate the interests of my country to my own personal self
aggrandizement, surely, to use the definition of libel, that
would tend to lower us in the estimation of right thinking

, members of society. Could it be said that anyone reading
that article would think otherwise than is said in the
Innmendo, which I respectfully submit to your Lordship leAk,:
very reasonable one, not couched in extravagant language,
as so many of them are, that this wee an attempt to disrupt
the united and harmonious operation of the Czechoslovak
Liberation Movement designed to liberate the country of
which he was the Senior Army Officer at the time.

Your Lordship has heard the evidence of, it I may
-" so say, that charming witness, Professor Dvornik, who went
. into the witness box first of all, a most fair-minded
witness, because the moment when we were discussing about •
the terms of one answer he at once withdrew it because he
thought he misht have done an injustice, He Said that to
a—Czech the words convey a derogatory meaning, and if
applied to an Army General, vars. SS went on to say, all I
vadsratoal him, it was a play on the word "Prohati" which,'
when used to a General, was an unpleasant word; but be that
as it may, he said the words to a Cseeh would definitely •
convoy a derogatory meaninq, and no tittle 'of evidence has
been called to suggest otherwise. The whole of this
translation was agreed with the exception of that one	 -
pass age, and / merely celled that witness to prove the
passage which was not agreed. They heard the evidence as
to what Cseehe would understand it to mean, and they have
not called any evidence to contradict it.

That is ali I desire to say to your Lordship on
whether the words are defamatory in tact. With a Jury I
.do understand the difference between words being capable
of being defamatory and words being defamatory in fact,
because Juries swollen, camels and do not strain at gnats;
but sten one comae to appear before a Judge sitting alone,
it is quite too difficult for a learned Judge to differen•
Mate between those two matters, because I should reepeet.
fully have thought on the first point on which your Lordship
has said you need not trouble me, the point was almost
unarguable, and that being so, and there being no evidence
to oontradiot the Plaintiff s :1 witness, Professor Dvornik,
could it possibly be said that anyone reading those words
could think they were complimentary to General Prehala.

PY learned friend says it has not only got to be
defamatory, but defamatory of the Plaintiff. Of course it
bee, but the whole point is that there were two nuisances,
one was ?rebels and the other was whoever was responsible
for the opposition in Paris. A, his motive in doing that
was personal ambition w- whose ambition? No one else but
Probate is referred to, it could only he Prolisla. Probala
VSS the General who was in Rupp.* charge of the whole of
the Liberation Movement in Poland, and no one dreams of
suggesting otherwise. Your Lordship may member what

Aeneral Proluala wrote in his own words to the letter on
page Si, end your Lordship members the terms of the reply'
That it was not a persomal attack on him. I do not nyder-
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stand the difference in a personal attack. If anyone says
of ms, I am inspired by sordid motives, .does it matter to re
whether they say it of me as a Barrister or as a private
individual? If it was an action for slander that would be
a material consideration, but in on action for libel it is
quite irrelevant. I only mention thia because Serjeant
Sullivan referred to the ease in which both he and I were
engaged, but that has no bearing on this OS80, because the
whole point in the Nutford case wS3 that Nutford'a name was
,nowhere mentioned in the libel, and it was held that there
'res no reference to him or to the young Russian Party.

Now I pass to fair comment, and there I quite fail
to understand the argument. Your Lordship remembers the
form of the Defence. It is in paragraph S. It is a rolled
up plea that the "words, in se far as they consist of state-
ments of faot" -- therefore, I mums there were. statements
of fact	 "are true in substance and in fact, and in so
far as they consist of expre	

s
ssions of opinion are fair

comment made in good faith" and so on, on the said facts.
Before this can be a fair comment part of this article must
be fact and part of it must be expressions of opinion, and
the expressions of opinion for the purpose of a z'ollei up
plea have to be, as yOla, Lordship knows, fair comment on
those facts.

Now what are the statements of tact in this •
article? In WI respectful submission your Lordship

•mentioned them correctly when you suggested to Serjeant
Sullivan that the two statements of fact might he firstly
that what went on in Poland was an attempt to create a
Mehism	 that could not be anything else, but e statement
of feet	 and the second one that it was grounded on person •
al or party ambition. I should have thought (it is a matter
entirely for your Lordship) that that also could only be a
statement of foot.

MR JUSTICE GROOM JOHNSON, I am not sure about that, but it
may be either.

MR SLAles That was the very next thing I was coming to.

MR JUSTICV MOM JOHNSON: It may be that somebody sets out
various things relating to a public man and says' This
shows that what he did woe founded on mammal or 'Arty
ambition. In that ease it would clearly be opinion.

MR Wins Ilia& going to take it as being either. Of •cures,

i/)

• iAthere were a Jury, it there were no doubt about a
pavtioular statement of fact or an expression of opinion,
your Lordship would rule as a matter of law which it was,
If there was any doubt your Lordship would leave it to the

jr.	 Jury to decide. Bore, of course, both matters are within.
your Lordship's province, end I am proposing to deal With
it (1) upon the basis of a statement of tact and (1) au
expression of opinion. Be that as it may, you cannot have
en opinion hanging in thin air,Supposing it is an
expression of opinion, it lean ()impassion of opinion on
what? On the statement of fact that there was an attempt,
by the Plaintiff tc create 4 schism.

SNR4EANT SULLIVAN; Mo.

MR JUSTICE CROON JOHNSON' I cannot see any other fact
relating to Prohalaiam other than that. That is, in solar
as that statementot tact about that Movement, I - will call

48.
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(AdSourned for i short time). •
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it, to use a colourless expression, , pointed at or expanded

by the other statement of fact -libout the other places.

MS SLADE: And there can be no doubt, because it As the

ohaTooterletlo of all those shadows.

12

. MR JUSTICE CROOM JOENSONI If this passage disapproves that

they were grounded and so on, if that foot was being

. stated, where la there any opinion (=prowled at all

'MR SLAM Your Lordship means "it all these shadows" is

rect.

RE JUST= CROON JOHNSON: If this disapproved that they

. were Obviously grounded, le that fact

MR SLOE: There is no opinion at all.

OREJELET UMW! Surely that is a deduction from the

previous sentence, and deduction is °cement.

. ER STADE: Whether those words, which have no bearing on

this case, might be comment, like the words Ilan inefficient

attempt to create a sort of Slovak separatism' -- I suppose

whether it is inefficient or not, the adjective might be

comment, but so far an this case is mooned, there would

be no complaint at all if the statement about motive was a

statement of fact. In my respectful submission, whatever

it is there is to room tor the plea of fair comment here

0	 stall.

. 30t nem CROW MESON: Lre you going on to suggest that
the comment cannot be fair?

let 8TA4281 Yes, wy Lord.

NS JESTS= OR0011 80INSON: If you ono going on to suggest

that, I think I had better listen to it at 2 o'clock.

.1
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MR SLAM: When your Lordship adjourned I was dealing with the
imputations of motive according to whether it was a state-
ment of fact or an expression of opinion. If it is an ex-
pression of opinion, the only statement of fact upon which
it could be based is the one, the Plaintiff's alleged
attempt to create schism.	 In my submission, it simply is
not a statement of fact. 	 First of all, upon our evidence
it does not exist; secondly, the onus lies upon the De-
fendant to prove the truth of the facto upon which his
comment is based.	 Ho has not done it.	 There could not
have been o schism because there was nothing to separate
from, in other -erds, the solo fact upon which the comment
purports to be based, upon the assumption that it is
comment, is simply completely false, or the Defendant has
not proved it to 'co true. 	 My evidence is that it was in
fact false because there was no question of there being any
liberation movement at all in existence during the period
from May to the let September, 1939. Dr. Bones resigned,
of course, in October, 1938. Furthermore, supposing the
statement of fact that there was an'ettempt by the Plaintiff
to create a schism was true? Assume against myself that
it was true, and assume, therefore, that the Plaintiff did
attempt to create a schism. The comment which I an
aaeuming for the purposes of my present argument is a
comment which is an imputation of an unworthy or disgraceful
motive.	 I respectfully agree that the defence of fair
comment extends to the imputation of disgraceful motives.
Serjeant Sullivan quoted the Norris ease which went to the
House of Lords.

MR ZUSTTOS CROON-JOHNSON: It was the case of the median.

. MR SIAM My recollection is it did go to the Huse of Lords,
and that the Defendants wore Aesoelated Newspapers. I do
net think it Is reported in eny of the official law Reports,
and I do not remember upon what point it did go to the House
of Lords. I did refresh my memory by looking at Fraser,
and it merely quotes it OS in "The Times" newspaper, 1933,
end as being "ILL?", which insane Rouse of Lords. But be that
as it may, no ease, so ftr as I know, has over decided that •
you can have on imputation of on unworthy motive oenetituting
a fair comment when there are no facts whatever to support
the imputation. In other words, supposing I am a candidate
for Parliament and the solo fact that is proved against me
or admitted is that I am a oandidate for Parliament. If
anyone eaids "Mt Slade to soaking the suffrage of the
electors of Oswaldtwietle and I think they ought to be warned
that his sole motive for doing no is that the moment he gets
into the Rouge of Commons be is going to vote for every
measure which he thinks will, assist him to get on to the
High Oourt Bench and vote against everything which be thinks
May not help his ambition for °elf-advancement" -- if-the
mar said something of that kind it would be an entirely
unwarrantable imputation of a motive to me from the bare
fact that I was seeking the suffrage of the electors of
Oawaldtwiatle.	 Your Lordship may remember that at one
time it was thought that the defence of fair comment did not
extend to the imputation of disgraceful motives at 011, and
in fact Lord :untie') Fletcher Moulton in goul and the Star
ewe a e went so far an to say se. Lord-Metice BuclaWy

ot 1ake that view and I think the law is now well
eettled that it does with the qualification which I have
Suet put. I cannot do better than refer your Lordship to a
short passage from the judgment of Lord 'hatless Buckley which'
appears in the footnote to the current edition of Mr Justice
Praser l e book on page 10/. Perhaps I ought to read the

BO.
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'hole thing. In a note on Wive; and Carson, Mr Justice
Fraaer'said: "In Runt v, Star Newspaper-Carrtd. Lord •
-Justice Pletcher Moulton satd that this passage in the judg-
ment of Lord Bober, Master of the Rolls, which is set out
below, le applicable to literary-criticism, but not to the
imputation of disgraceful motives to an individual. • The
decision of the question before the Court Of Appeal in Runt
V. Star Newspaper Co. did not turn on this point. imputa-
lions of official misconduot had been made against the re-
turning officer at n municipal election, and it was contended

. in the Court of Appeal that such imputations could not be
fair comment". New this is the passage: "Indeed", Lord
Justine Buckley, "Comment...may convey imputations of a bad
motive so tar as the facts truly stated justify the imputa-
tion. It is for the jury to say whether the facto justify
the imputation or rot. The question for the jury is whether
the comment is in their opinion beyond that which a fair man,
however extreme might be his views in the matter :debt make
.honestly and without malice, end which was 4ot without
.foundation. The defence of fair comment extends to the
imputation of motives/. In practice, where disgraceful
.motivee have been imputed to the Plaintiff, there ore, no
doubt, very few cases where literary criticism could be pro-
tected by plea of fair comment, wmist, on the otter hand,
where the conduct of public men is Attacked, such a plea
might not infrequently succeed, but it is respeotfully sdb-
.mitted that if the matter Gomm:W . 0n is a matter of public
interest and the comment is honest and otherwise fair and
not without foundation, the comment will be protected under
a plea of fair comment, altbongh it imputes asps:sofa
motives to the plaintiff". Then the learned author sums up
the positionion on page 13.2 where he says "Saving regard to
the	 gment", and so on.

MR

	

	 03 OROOV.JORNSON: I it a question of law for the
Clotirt-to determine whether it is fair comment or feet which
is being stated in the article? I at a little pressed in

. this ease by the words 'That provee so-and-so, It it had
been "In our opinion that sbows", that would be one thing.
Why it not whether the writer is Importing to smote a
fact or purportieg to express an opinion,

KR MDR: Tes -,:my Lord. 2 think the word 'proves" is definit e -
ly a verb which would tend to the o pmetruotion that it was E.
statement of fact rather an expression of opinion.

RR JOST= OR0011-JORN8OW: Assume it is opinion. Ton say there le
nothing in what has gone before if those words refer to the
plaintiff. There is nothing to justify an accusation of an
unworthy motive.

MR $21413: Your Lordship has my point preoieely. If I may take
the illustration which I gave facetiously just now t suppos-
ing in point of fact in addition to my being a candidate for
Perlin:Ant Twee elected and the facts were that I hod voted
in favour of Pertain measures end had abstained from voting
or bad voted against °there, it might very well be that wf
conduot in so doing might justifran honest person •• not
necessarily a reasonable person •• taking the view that I had
been actuated by some secondary motive. But the mere
bare statement that I was a Member of Parliament would not
warrant such en imputation, end if I any applythat to this
gage, assuming against myself for the moment that I attempt-
ed to create a sohlem, I may have attempted to create a

soblem from the most. patriotic and loyal motives or from the
most corrupt motives or motives of pure self•interest. To

say as 4 pure statement of fact "You created a schism and we
are going to ask the Court to infer from that . it is not
inferences it is pure

by	
ow:Picture • that I must have been

anihsted	 some bass motive in my submission shows that
theme is nothing which could possibly warrant such an

interpretation.
MR JUST/03 cum40080,4 What would you 047 to Ws!
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An article says a man left certain emPloyment hurriedly on
a particular day and it was found his petty cash was short
by 0.10. 0. On another day, says the article, he left
some other employment and there, too, his petty caeh was
found to be short by L5. This proves that he is nothing
more or less than a thief. Mat is that, foot or comment?

YR SLAM It must be fact.

RR 4173110E 01/00M-Z0RNS0N: I should have thought that was
comment and on proof of the fact that he left those two
employments and that his petty °soh was short, the question
then for the jury would be, was that comment beyond that -
which a fair and reasonably minded men would make?

MR MON! 1 entirely and respectfully agree with the last
part.

MR JOST/OR OROOM.. ;ORNSON: You say that t.s quite different from
this case.

UR WM: Yea, my Lord.

MR JUST= OR0011-JORNSOR: Supposing the statement had been
ou the let February he left his employment hurriedly and
get*‘nother job, end on the 10th *rate left that employ.
ment hurriedly. This proves that, in our opinion, he is a
thief. . You would say there is no material there on which
such an honest opinion could be founded.

MR BLUM it spite of the wilts *In our opinion" I would
respectfully suggest that is a statement of Solt. It used
to be considered a well known dodge for gvoiding liability
to says-lin Ny opinion Slade is a thief w.

RR 41STI0R OR0011-30RISION: I shall net attach any imoortanee
to that partioular form of *this proves that he i a
thief'.

MR UM I outfit help thinking that that must be a statement
of hot. I, of course, ogres that the writer could
not prove it. Only a ;Odle or JIM Gould find out whether
be woe a thief. Dot the mere feet that money was found
missing being consistent with it either being token br
the plaintiff or taken by someone sleeves it taken by the
plaibtiff not taken with intent to defraud within the mean-
ing of the Weeny Act gm the faet that he was a thief would 	 !
Involve the felonious intent, and I think that at be a
statement of Shot. Assuming by way of an expression of
opinion I em going to serf if I may alter the analogy, that
"I was with Mr Sledel I looked for mg gold 'atoll. I No
sold Watch was missing and I IOW WO Slade running hurriedly
away'. I am not going to soy for one moment that upon
those facts a person might not honestly express the opinion,
U It could be an opinion, that I had stolen it because
there are facts from Which an inference could be drawn by
an honest person..	 •

•
MR 411671011 OROCII•JORIXO/h. No Gould dm the conclusion that

Ur Slade knew more about the watch than I did.

MR SIAM VIS, WI lord. Then one IA getting very near the
borderline. Rut if the sole fact woes *I sew N, Slade"
-• leaving out that be 'es running herriedlyaway st- "in my
opinion he was responsible for the theft', then you are
leaving out the sole foot from shish the inference can he
drawn or from 'Isiah en inference can be honeetiy drawn.
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Although it is "honestly" and not "reasonably", the two are
always allowed because if e person has no possible reason
the Court is entitled to think that he does not honestly
believe. So much for if those words are an expression of
opinion.	 If, as in my submission they are, they are a
statement of fact, that is to say "This proves." it does not
merely moan "This, In our opinion, proves". 	 "This proves.",

. are the words used, "that thoy_were too obviously grounded
in Pereonnl or party ambitions". Then, of course, the fact

t ' simply is not proved, and I do not suppose my friend
Serjeant Sullivan would even suggest it.

•
MR JUSTICE GROOM-JOHNSON: If it is fact, there being no plea.

of justification, cadet questie.

tiR SLADE: Therefore I have only to consider the point upon
the aseumption that it is cowent. As I gay, summing up my
argument, if it is comment, firstly, there is no foot
proved upon which it could be based. For that purpose we
need only leo]: at the libel. The rolled up plea when
applied to the foots stated in the libel, and the only feet
stated in the libel, we that there was an attempt to create
a schism. That has not been proved; indeed it has been
disproved. Therefore the whole basis of the oomoont goes
because a comment cannot be fair which is built upon feats
which are not truly stated.

LT =TIM CROON-JOHNSON: You say that the comment must he on
the facts stated in the article, but how far can you go Into
facts which ere within the knowledge; I will not say of
everybody, but of the writer and of the Plaintiff which
are not stated in the article? You see, a great deal of
that to rilich I have listened is not stated in the article
at all.

MR SLOE: No my Lord. Your Lordship has now touched upon
a point which one of these days the Meuse of Lords will have

• to investigate because the rolled up plea is always used
certainly plead guilty to having used it on a number of

occasions •• in order to avoid the necessity for giving
particulars'. Everyone knows, and no one knows better than
those who plead in these notions, that if you plead fair
comment, in the ordinary form you have to give partioulare.
The whole basis of the decisions which say that you need
not give particulnse is that the rolled up see sae wng
foot, true: awnd. oomment; fair", and if I em to give

rtr
iculars TTIFto usurp the functions of the learned
ge or the learned Judge and a pry in deciding what la

toot and what .la oomment.

YR JUSTICE CROON-JOHNSON: in the words complained of?

MA GUDE: Yes, my Lord. If one looks at the words of the
rolled up plea, it must be strictly limited to the °Mae

O because he says: nIn so tar as it consists of statements of
fact" and then he says "The said facts". So that strictly
speaking, it: my submission all that the Court is entitled
to do is to look at the evidence given in the case, eo far
as it relates to tho facts stated in the libel, to super-

- impose upon that, of toupee, any matters of *Loh the 00UPt
• Is entitled to take Judicial notice, and that is all. Sven

the facts of which the Court is entitled to take Judicial
notice could only warrant fair comment if they are in tact
specified in the article, though the Cour, takes Judicial 	 .
notice, for example, of a date when the particular incident
occurred. But to take this liberation movement, it a
liberation movement were Waved to in the article, the
Court might take Judicial notice of the fact that the
original liberation movementOld not commence, •o tar as
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a.lational Committee is concerned, until October, 1939 and
a government with July 1940. But it would not be entitled
to rely on that as the basis for the comment unless that wee
referred to in the libol itself. 	 lity friend kept on saying

• "So far as it relates to the Plaintiff", imputations can be
. only imputed to an individual or individuals, and when you
talk about Prchalsiar, it is Prchala who is responsible for
that shadow, and that is one of the shadows which was
inspired by motives of self-aggrandisement. In my submission .
it can only mean an imputation of an impropor motive to an
individual. Tho more fact, although it is not spooified,
that other indiviauale were associated with Mr Prohala and
ware actuated by the same motives would not prevent Ur. .
Prohala suing because he is mentionod by name. /f, there-
fore, there wore 12 poople at the head of the movement and
they were all inopired by an improper motive whethor the 12 •
could sue might be a question of a oleos libel, but it would
be perfectly clear the one who was nomad could sus because
it would be an imputation of and concerning the person whose
name was mentioned. .

. One further word on the issue of damages. 	 I am only
asking your Lordship to award such a reasonable sum by way of
damages as will make it quite clear to all the Czech
refugees in this country a. your Lordship may remember
Professor Dvornik said it was road by all Czech people in
thio, country •• that there wee no vestige of foundation for
this imputation upon him. It was not right to point out
that he has been already Weed on the Retired List and that
he has been insubordinate -- I do not know to wham •- and .
that the reason for insubordination is simply the desire for
sol f-"SPratdieemant. It is not right to say that what he
sought to de was from these motiveu and to publish it at
those timoa in a paper of this description concluding with
the words, your Lordship may remember "It can be trusted that
our people ot home, where, of course, this general hopes to
roturn as soon as this trouble is over	 that is a aorious
matter. Your Lordship is ontitled to tato into considera-
tion, firstly, the circulation of the oowspaperf secondly)
the position occupied by Oonoral Prehals4 thirdly, the
person by whom the article was written and his relationship
to Dr. Banos and the weight that name would carry. True it
is the article wee alr:tten under the non do plume of "Tonax"
and 1•.c has certaitir been tenacious in the wa: , he hoe hold
to the article. Your Lordship may remember that we wrote
the letter which obviously boars the stamp of having been
writtan by the Oonerol himself asking for the publication of
0 statamont in affect montionina at tho and his meananimity
in tlhing no further stops. Your Lordship roma-hors the
anower ye got, an" ho said he would have to appeal to tho
Court : ne defend his honour.	 Your Lordahip is also
antit?ad to talao into conoidorntion that ho gave aqui the 	 .
caanortvoity of nublinhing n reasonable atatement after it
had 1-c:.n olocrO. up.	 I ash your Lordship to find a
reasonabl y autatontial num so as to make it quite clear
that tord was no "arrant for this imputotion.

At =Tim woor-Jorma . Does the next action in tho Lint
arise on the sotto article?

S/M1' Yea, ny Lora.

SZTOLLPT SULLIVal Yes, my Lord, and an unnomod individual.

Kt =Tim CROOY-JORNSCr It strikes me that there nut be
rrOnt 10t1 of around aihich is common to both actions so

• far as public evanta aro concerned, at least, nnd pnsaibly
• so'far An private activities are conoornoei . It that is 30,

y u
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Ithink it would ;ratably save time if . I listened to the
aMond'oase and then give either one :adamant embodying both
actions, or else two separate Judgments in which I can refer
to persona individually.

SAMAR SITLI.ITAN: I Wee , my Lord.

AR JUSTIOR CROON-JORNSON: Then I will put this case in tomorrow
as part heard to follow the one which lam now going to
embark upon. Is the one that I am about to embark upon
likely to finish, so far as the evidence is concerned,
today?

SARJUNT SULLIVAN: I do not know what the evidence may be

MR SIAM A defendant is frequently in that position.

MR AliTICE GROON-JORISON: I will put the General's action In
tomorrow as part board to follow the one which it precedes
to.day.

NA SUM: my friend Serjeant Sullivan, said just now that be
did not desire to address your Lordship now. The word nnow"
made me suspicious.

SARJRANT SULLIVAN; I have the right.

BR JUSTIN OROOK.MRSON: I do not know that he was saying be
wanted to address me in the first action after I had hoard
the second one.

8NRMANT MUM: /did contemplate answering the Plaintiff ..
now. 1 am for a Defendant who oalls to evidence. I made
a submission which I have heard argued about end I wish to
reply to that argument.

MR JOST/C2 CRODU-JORNSON, I had better hear you now.

MR SIADR: I do not object, but my friend is assuming that he
has the right to the last word. Whether he can have the
right to the last word of reply upon wy avower to his point
of law, I raise to objection anyhow, but he put in the
diary entry of the 23rd January and a translation of ours
which in different from theirs.

BR MYSTIC'S OROOR-MMUNk This does tot entertain me.

MR BLOM If your Lordship pleases. -

SWIM PLUM: With regard to facts, once you get the
idea of what these three words mean, words alluding to the
doctrines of people or the movements of people or tho
policie s of people, whatever be the rule it is very diffi-
cult for any two minds to hit upon a precise definition of
the meaning of words because every word has its own
evaluation in the individual mind. They ere not like
mathematical factors which ore rigid and comprehensive.
rhatevor be the moaning of these two words, the reference
to the two people in Poland, there 10 03.04111 a reference
to the activities of those two people. Therefore there is
stated as a fact that the activities of those people in
Poland died off there with the Beck regime before they
oould grow into a real schism. In the old days senior
Counsel was not allowed to argue a pleading point and I
hope that them days will return, for I tote arguing points
of pleading when a case has been heard, But those words
open 00 relevant the emetiOn of whet were the activities
which came to an end but which might have developed into a
schism.	 Amordingly the facts stated, namely, that
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those activities had a tendency to produce that again
ambiguous word "schism" entitles your Lordship to enquire and
ascertain what in fact were the activities that are described
to use a common word, as Prohalaiam or Mahaneklem, as 00
ease may be. Therefore you have to ascertain what in tacit
were those things so described and *tether they we 	 f a	 •
tendency if developed to create the circumstances wh: h
might result in divided allegiance.	 I think that was the
final vier, and I say no more on that.	 That is the question
of the investigation of the facts .of what took place in
Poland and the context in which they did take plade to show . Y.
the tendency of those feats. •:::

The second thing I have to say is as my friend per-
sistently shuts his eyes to the two words at the commeneeMent
of what he calls the motif, "This proves" -- what proves?
"It is characteristic that all these shadove, Which fell on
the unity of our second liberation movement didn't leave 	 .
any lasting traces and were always of an absolutely different
substance, emanating from different groups and tendenoies.
This proves that they were too obviously grounded in personal
or party ambitions or that their objective cause was swept
away" -that, my Lord, is deduction, and deduction is
comment. I do not have to cite authority for that. Deduc-
tion is opinion, and opinion is comment.	 It is not stated
as a categorical fact.	 It is stated as a deduotion from
the fact which is proved by the establishment of this body
now as ft national Osecho-Slovak Government, the Government
of an Allied Nation. It is proved that the premise is
right, that in spite of the agonies end difficultiee of the

• shook which followed the ;Talent° invasion the cause 	 •
survived and this proves that the troubles were not funda-
mental but were party or personal or based on something.

„..which was incorrect.

"41**1 Might I correct a etatement of my friend. The
Csecho-Slovak publication it the time of this publication
was not the official publication of the Government and the • -
Bones, who is the Defendants was not in any may a Government
representative. EC was the private Editor of the paper at
that time. Later it was taken over es being the national
arson of the Osecho-Slovek Government.

Qtrummeoo tomorrow =Mlle .
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